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July 22, 2016

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Vermillion
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069

I am pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of
Vermillion, South Dakota, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

The report was prepared by the City Finance Office in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) applicable to government as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data
and the completeness and fairness of presentations, including all disclosures, rests with the City.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and
is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable readers to gain an understanding
of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an accounting and
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss,
theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled fo allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of
Vermillion’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. We believe that the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard
assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Williams & Company, P.C. a firm of
certified public accounts authorized by the State of South Dakota Department of Legislative
Audit to conduct the audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Vermillion for the year ended December 31,
2015, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evalvating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors’ concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City of
Vermillion’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.

Sister City to Ratingen, Germany * Home of the University of South Dakota
www.vermillion.us



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Vermillion’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City of Vermillion

The City of Vermillion was founded in 1859, located in the southeastern corner of South Dakota,
6 miles west of I-29 between Sioux Falls, SD and Sioux City, IA. Vermillion is situated atop a
bluff of the Vermillion River and also overlooks the mighty, natural Missouri River, which
contains the red clay that prompted our county name of Clay County. Vermillion is home to the
University of South Dakota with enrollment of 9,971 offering majors in 206 undergraduate
programs and 66 graduate programs, and Division I athletics. The 2010 census had the city
population increasing 3% over 2000 to 10,571.

The city operates under the Council-Manager form of government and is aldermanic in form.
The City Council consists of a part-time Mayor and 8 part-time aldermen who hire a City
Manager as the chief executive officer. The City is divided into four wards with representation
on the City Council by two members from each ward. The Mayor is elected at large. The terms
of the Mayor and Alderman are four years with elections held in each even-numbered year. The
City Council meets the first and third Monday of the month in regular session and, in addition,
special meetings and work sessions throughout the year.

The City provides the full range of basic services normally associated with a municipality.
These basic services include police, emergency communications, fire, emergency medical
services, building inspection, street construction and maintenance, planning and zoning, airport,
recreation and parks, golf course, liquor store, general administration services and utility services
including water, electric, wastewater, landfill/recycling and curbside recycling. For financial
reporting purposes, all funds involved in providing these services are included based on financial
accountability. Financial accountability is determined by several inherent factors, including
fiscal dependence, ability to impose will upon the entity’s governing body, provision of specific
financial burdens or benefits and separate legal entity status. The Housing and Redevelopment
commission is a legally separate authority whose board is appointed by the City Council and
reported separately as a component unit within the City of Vermillion financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the basis for the City of Vermillion’s financial planning,
development and control. The budget ordinance must be adopted by a majority of the Council
members no later than September 30 of each year. Once the budget is approved, the
expenditures incorporated within the budget become legally binding and the actual expenditures
cannot exceed the budgeted amounts unless amended through a supplemental appropriation
ordinance or other permitted means. Even though it is not necessary to make formal
appropriations for proprietary funds, an annual budget is developed and published with the
annual budget ordinance. Because enterprise fund revenues and expenses fluctuate with changing
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services and delivery levels, flexible budgets are used for planning, control and evaluation
purposes. All appropriations shall lapse at the close of the fiscal year.

Budgetary control is monitored at the function level. All funds budgeted in accordance with
state statute are included in the budget-to-actual comparisons, presented on pages 58-62 as part
of the required supplemental information and supplementary information.

Factor Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered for a broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of
Vermillion operates.

Local economy.

The economy in Vermillion as reflected in the sales tax collections saw an increase in 2015. The
total City sales tax revenues increased $259,681 or 7.10% over 2014, This would include the
first cent used for general fund, the second penny sales tax used for capital projects increasing
$255,969 while the BBB sales tax used for advertising and promotion of the City increased
$3,712 or 1.12% over 2014, As the South Dakota Department of Revenue collects the sales tax
on behalf of the City information as to the individual areas of the increase are not available. For
the first four months of 2016 total City sales tax revenue increased 15.4%, $188,481 over 2015.
The sales tax receipts will be monitored and the budget will be reviewed in August 2016 to
determine if adjustmenis are needed.

The unemployment rate for the City of Vermillion decreased during 2015 from 3.5% to 2.7%
while the state unemployment rate decreased from 4.0% to 3.3%. The unemployment rate for
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the City of Vermillion saw a high in July 2015 of 4.0% but decreased the rest of the year to 2.7%
at year end. The state unemployment rate was as high as 4.0% early in the year but continued to
decrease the rest of the year. With the higher state rate than city rate it appears that individuals
are aftracted to the community for the job availability.

'The City of Vermullion is home to the University of South Dakota that has been ranked among
the top doctorial institutions in the country. It is the home to South Dakota’s School of
Medicine, Law, College of Fine Arts and internationally accredited Business School. The
University is the City’s largest employer and saw a slight decrease in enrollment of 0.9% from
10,061 for 2014 to 9,971 for 2015.

The University moved to Division I for all athletics in 2008 increasing the athletic scholarships
offered along with additional fundraising to support programs at that level. Construction began
in late 2014 on a $66 million Sports Performance Enhancement Facility Arena, a Science, Health
and Research Lab and an Outdoor Track and Soccer Complex all located on the north side of
campus near the Dakota Dome. The project consists of a 6,000 seat arena for basketball and
volleyball, on outdoor facility for soccer and track and a science, health and research laboratory.
This project is scheduled to be completed in 2016. There are a number of other projects in the
planning and design phase on the campus.

Sanford Vermillion operates a 25-bed acute care hospital, medical clinic, 66 bed care center and
23 unit senior living complex. The Sanford Vermillion Clinic contracted with the University of
South Dakota to provide student health services starting in the fall of 2002. The Sanford
Vermillion Clinic, Vermillion Medical Clinic, and Olson Medical Clinic have been instrumental
in increasing the availability of medical care in the community. In addition, all clinics are
providing outreach programs bringing specialists into the community. In February 2014, Dakota
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Hospital Foundation and Sanford Health announced that Sanford Health will make a $12 million
investment in Sanford Vermillion’s medical facilities over the next five years. A maintenance
facility was constructed in late 2014 and the first phase consisting of emergency room entrance
and other facility services was completed in early 2016 followed by the removal of the old
building with construction beginning on phase II. The agreement also means Sanford Health will
assume responsibility for the infrastructure, including building projects and technology, for
Sanford Vermillion.

The 18-hole golf course and residential development project, which was undertaken by the City
after significant review by citizen committees, has provided for the orderly growth of the City
with all the development being served by City utility services. All developed housing sites have
been sold resulting in an increase of over twenty-two million dollars of taxable value. The golf
course and housing development were included in a tax incremental financing district that was
dissolved in 2013. An area on the south side of the course remains to be developed due to lack of
infrastructure. Marketing of this area will begin when infrastructure is extended, which will
open up approximately 17 housing sites.

The value of building permits issued in 2015 totaled $29,966,297 up from $13,611,697 in 2014.
The number of single family dwellings constructed totaled eleven in 2015, an increase of seven,
with thirteen new multi-family structures consisting of 46 units and six commercial permits.
Through May 2016 the value of building permits issued is $8,041,424 for seventeen single
family dwellings and one commercial permit. It should be noted that construction by the State of
South Dakota on the University property are not required to obtain building permits thus these
building values are not reported in any of the building permit numbers.

Major initiatives.

Vermillion was named Large Community of the Year by Governor Dennis Daugaard at the
Governor’s Economic Development Conference on April 15, 2014. The Governor recognized
Vermillion for taking a multi-faceted approach to achieving economic development by focusing
on further developing its workforce, business park and housing development.



Construction was completed in 2014 on a 500,000 gallon water tower that was placed in service.
The project is funded by a South Dakota Board of Water and Natural Resources, Drinking Water
State Revolving Loan in the amount of $1,532,000 that includes 10% principal forgiveness as a
grant from the State. The existing 100,000 gallon water tower that is over 100 years old was
retired and was removed in 2015.

The City of Vermillion and Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development Company
(VDCD) commissioned a Talent Attraction Strategy and Workforce Housing Solutions study
prepared by Community Housing Laboratory, LLC in October 2012. The major finding of the
report was the need to solve the chronic workforce housing problem and implement a long-term
talent attraction strategy. Due to the lack of available housing sites the (VCDC) has acquired 50
acres adjoining the city that has been annexed into the city. The development labeled Bliss
Pointe will be developed in phases with the first phase completed in late 2014 with over 60
housing sites. The balance of the development will have an additional 70 housing sites when
fully developed. To assist the VCDC with the infrastructure development the City created Tax
Incremental District Number 6 and sold a TIF bond for $1,732,000. Tn 2015 the VCDC has
marketed six residential housing sites and one commercial lot and so far in 2016 six more
residential housing sites have been sold.

The City Council adopted an ordinance creating a Business Improvement District (BID) #1
which enacting a general $2.00 occupancy tax on all hotel, motel and lodging establishment
rooms within the municipal limits to be effective June 1, 2014. The Business Improvement
Board adopted a plan that recommends addressing the described needs through visitor facilities,
events, attractions and activities which benefit the City and the hotels, motels, and lodging
establishments located in the district. During 2015 the occupancy tax generated $59,306 of
which $50,410 was expended to the Vermillion Area Chamber of Commerce and Development
Company (VCDC) for promotion of the community. The BID Board approved the 2016 budget
with 85% of the occupancy tax collected being expended to the VCDC for advertising and
promotion.

The equipment replacement fund added the following equipment during 2015; a police vehicle,
workman, two pickups, car and snow blower totaling $234,422.

Long-term financial planning.

The City has made and will continue to make investments in infrastructure improvements in
streets, parks and buildings. The City utilities have made significant improvements to continue
to provide the quality of service that the citizens have come to expect and have planned for
future needs.

In 2005 the City was awarded a $750,000 grant with 20% local matching for bike path
improvements. The first phase of the bike path extension along the Vermillion River started in
2009 with completion in 2010. The bike path extension along SD Hwy 50 was completed in
2012.  The bike paih along Stanford Street between Cherry Street and SD Hwy 50 was
completed by the Department of Transportation in late 2014. There is a small portion of grant
funds remaining that the City is working with the Department of Transportation to make
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improvements to existing bike paths with the 2016 budget including $200,000 of sales tax
funding and are currently awaiting approval for these projects,

The Joint Powers Landfill completed the leachate detention pond during 2014 and construction
of cell 5 was completed in 2015, These two projects were being funded by a State Revolving
Loan of $1,639,000, a South Dakota Board of Water and Natural Resources Solid Waste Grant
of $522,210 and $200,000 of local funds.

As the existing swimming pool is reaching the end of its useful life, a committee was appointed
charged with providing the City Council information as to what type of swimming pool would
best fit the community’s needs going forward, The city contracted with a pool consultant to
work with the committee in developing designs for the new pool. The committee held public
meetings to review the project designs to refine the project. The City Council on September 16,
2013 adopted a resolution for capital outlay accumulation designating $500,000 of the General
Fund balance for funding of the pool project. During 2013 the City Council approved a master
planning process for Prentis Park that includes the swimming pool. The City Council approved a
funding package for the Prentis Park improvements consisting of $1 million of General Fund
Reserves, $1 million of Second Penny Sales Tax Reserves, grants and donations of $250,000 and
a General Obligation Bond of $3 million. The General Obligation Bond was approved by over
75% of the voters in November 2014 election. The City Council in an effort to reduce the
impact of the bond repayment on property taxes adopted an ordinance that imposed a 5% markup
on the wholesale purchase price of malt beverages. Following adoption of the ordinance an
initiated petition was received to repeal the markup ordinance. A special election was set for
June 30, 2015 at which time the initiated measure failed 37% to 63%. In February, 2016 the City
issued general obligation bonds, series 2016 face amount of $3,005,000 at a premium of $90,132
for a portion of the funding for the Prentis Park Improvements. This was a 20 year bond with
interest rates ranging from 1% to 3.5%. Also in February, 2016 the City approved contracts for
pool construction totaling $5,248,149. The contractor began construction in May 2016 and
contracts call for the pool portion of the contracts to be completed by June 2017,

The 5% malt beverage markup was implemented after passing the referendum July 1, 2015 with
revenues in 2015 of $63,079 in six months and $47,924 for the first five months in 2016.

The 2016 budget included $689,500 for equipment replacement in the equipment replacement
fund, $30,000 for airport improvement, $75,000 for Bliss Pointe park equipment, $110,000 fire
department breathing apparatus, $95,000 library materials, $58,000 to replace Lions Park
bathroom, $176,000 for street construction and miscellaneous concrete projects, and $40,000 for
fire department roof replacement. The City will continue to provide the same quality services to
the citizens during the next budget year.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Vermillion for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the year ended December
31, 2014. This was the nineth consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government had to publish an
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easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Finance Office. We should like to express our appreciation to
all members of the Departments who assisted and contributed to its presentation. Without the
leadership and support of the City Council, preparation of this report would not have been
possible.

Sincerely,

Michae! D, Carlson
Finance Officer

viii



®

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to
City of Vermillion
South Dakota

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2014

55

Executive Director/CEQ

X



Planning Commission } ........................................................................................

[ Mayor and City Council ]

| Finance Offcer |,.vuuo Gty Manager J...........[ ity Atomey |

|

Emergency

Communications
w

] Police

Wastewater

Water [

e ———
Solid Waste

Fire

& Recycling

Contraciual Responsibilities

Advisory Responsibilities

Cooperation Exercised

Collaborative Responsibilities

U

Utilities
Manager

Parks,

Civil
Engineer

Recreation,
Golf

Code
Compliance

L

Liquor Store



CITY OFVERMILLION
MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

For the Period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015
Mayor
John E. (Jack) Powell
Alderman Central Ward

Kelsey Collier-Wise
Katherine Price

Alderman Northeast Ward
Clarene Meins
Holly Meins

Alderman Northwest Ward
Howard Willson
Parker Erickson

Alderman Southeast Ward
Steve Ward
Rich Helland

City Manager

John Prescott

xi



SOUTH DAKOTA

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



CITY OF VERMILLION
FINANCIAL SECTION



21 1% Avenue NW

WILLIAMS$
‘ Le Mars, 1A 51031

Phone (712) 548-7801

8 COMPANYPC Fax {712) 546-6543

Certified Public Accountants www.williamscpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Mayor and Members of the
City Council
City of Vermillion, South Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF
VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit, We did not audit the financial statements of the Vermillion Housing and
Redevelopment Commission (a discretely presented component unit), which
statements reflect total assets of $24,563 and total revenues of $905,367 as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2015, Those financial statements were audited by cther
auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment
Commission, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits



contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
optain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia!
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpcse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentaticn of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmenta! activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota as of December 31, 2015,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the City of Vermillion, South
Dakota adopted new accounting guidance related to the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. Our opinions are not
modified with respect to this matter.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information,
schedule of the City's proportionate share of the net pension asset, and schedule of
the City’s contributions to the South Dakota Retirement System on pages 5 through
17 and 58 through 64 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures tc the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion ar
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City’s basic financia! statements. The
introductery section, combining and individual nenmajor fund financial statements,
budgetary compliance schedules, and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the budgetary
compliance schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additicnal procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund



financial statements and the budgetary compliance scheduies are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 22, 20186, on our consideration of the City of Vermillion's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Vermillion's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

W-,,C «%n&“'

Certified Public Accountants

Le Mars, lowa
July 22, 2016



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December, 31, 2015

As management of the City of Vermillion, we offer readers of the City of Vermillion's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis ¢f the financial activities of the City for the year
ended December 31, 2015. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our transmittal letter, which can
be found on pages i-viii of this report, as well as the separately issued financial statements of the
Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment Commissicn, a discretely presented component unit of
the City.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« The net position of the City increased by $3,022,918 as a result of the current year's
operations. The net position of our gevernmental activities increased by $2,472,748 or
7.19% and the net position of our business-type activities alsc increased by $550,170 or
1.46%.

s Total revenues from all sources increased in 2015 by $200,981 to $23,544,345. 1n 2015,
charges for services increased $735,604, cperating grants & contributions increased
398,597, capital grants & contributions decreased $1,043,275, property taxes increased
$87,834, sales tax increased $371,765, other general revenues decreased by $48,544.,

s Total cost of all pregrams was $20,521,427 for 2015, This is a decrease of $1,451,257 or
6.60% over 2014,

« The City's long-term debt/capital leases increased $1,407,203 from 2014 due to
repayment of existing bond issues and issuance of $2,695,000 of crossover refunding
bonds for the city hall capital lease of which $2,638,275 is being held in escrow.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended fo serve as an introduction to the City of Vermillion's
basic financial statements. The comprehensive annual financial report presents the following
three components cf the financial statement;

1. Government-wide financial statements provide infoermation of the City as a whole.

2. Fund financial statements provide detaiied information for the City's significant funds.

3. Notes to the financial statemenis provide additicnal information essential to
understanding the gevernment-wide and fund statements.

This report alsc contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City of Vermillion's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector businesses.
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The staternent of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the four
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. This statement is presented using the accruat basis
of accounting, which means that all changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present information as follows:

* Governmental activities — This includes general government, public safety, public works,
health and welfare, economic development and culture and recreation, which are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

» Business-type activities — This includes the Electric, Water, Sewer, Liguor Store, Golf
Course, Solid Waste System, and Curbside Recycling that are intended to recover all or
a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Vermillion itself (known as
the primary government) but also a legally separate entity for which the City of Vermillion is
financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reperted separately from
the financial information presented for the primary government itself. Separately issued financia!
statements of the Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment Commission are availakle and may be
obtained from the Commission at PO Box 382, Vermillion, 8D 5769,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18-19 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
centrol over rescurces that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Vermillion, like other state and local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City's significant funds and
not the City as a whole. The City's funds can be divided into twe categories-governmental and
proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the governments operations
and the basic services it provides, and are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting
with focuses on available spendable rescurces. This allows the reader to evaluate the City's
short-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statement, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmenta! funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing sc, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
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facilitate the comparison between the governmental funds and the government-wide financial
statements,

The City maintains nineteen individua! governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General fund, and Sales tax fund are
considered to be major funds. Data for the other seventeen governmenta!l funds are combined
into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the report.

The City adopted an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgstary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget on
page 58,

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-23 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report activities that charge for services provided to outside customers. The
Enterprise funds are presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric utility, water utility, wastewater utility,
liguor store, golf course, Joint Powers landfill operations and curbside recycling. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s
various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleat of vehicles; self
funded unemployment insurance, custodial services and copier-fax-postage activities. These
services benefit governmental and business-type functions: as such the results of operations
have been allocated and are included within governmental and business-type activities in the
government wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detall. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information on the Electric Utility, Water Utility, Wastewater Utility, Liguor Store, Golf course, Joint
Powers Landfill cperations, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City, and
Curbside Recycling which is considered a non-major fund. Conversely, all the internal service
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements.  Individuai fund data for the internal service funds is provided in tha form of
comuining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 24-26 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27-57 on this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the general fund and
sales tax fund schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance budget and
actual, the schedule of the City's proporticnate share of the net pension asset and the schedule
of the City's contributions to the South Dakota Retirement System. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 58-64 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
and internal service funds are presented immediately foliowing the required supplementary
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information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be
75 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

found on pages 65-

The following two tables present condensed information on the City of Vermillion’s Net Position
(Exhibit 1) and Changes in Net Position (Exhibit 2) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
with comparative data for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, Assets and deferred
cutflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $76,637,252 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year.

Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Leng-term Liabilities Qutstanding
Other Liabilities
Total Ligbilities

Deferred inflows of Resources

Nzt Position:

Nat Investment in Capital Assets,
Restrictad

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

City of Vermillion

Net Position
Governmenta! Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2014 2014 2014

2015 (Mot Rastated) 2015 (Not Restated) 2015 (Not Rastated)
13,926,979 § 7,881,789 § 13172,432 % 13,078,252 27,099,411 § 20,980,021
31,871,730 32,340,123 45,668,380 46,040,544 77,440,110 78,380,667
45,798,708 40,221,892 58,740,812 55,118,798 104,539,521 099,340,638
1,383,457 - 857,783 - 2,241,240 -
7,482,310 £,008,178 18,074,657 18,078,398 25,666,887 24,084,574
787 542 837,010 1,897,657 2,240,344 26851989 3,077,354
8,275 852 5,843,186 19,972,214 21,318,742 28,252,068 27.161,928

1,176,675 - 714 788 1,881,443
25.161,730 29,109,338 27,122,801 26,523,053 53,284 631 £5,632,391
5,087,224 1,861,402 1,934,560 1,305,834 8,021,783 3,287,334
5,476,885 3,307 966 9,854,143 9,971,067 15,330,828 13,279,033
37,725638 % 34,378,706 $ 38,611,613 3 37,800,054 78,637252 % 72,178,760
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Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services
Operating Grants &
Contributions
Capital Grants &
Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Cther

Total Revenues
Expenses:

General Governrﬁenf
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreatlon
Conservation & Development
Interest on Long-term Debt
Electric
Water
Wastewatar
Liguor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfil!
Curbside Recycling
Total Expenses
Increasa{Decrease) In
Net Position
Before Transfers
Transfers
Increase in Net Paosition
Net Position January 1

Prior pericd adjustment

Adjusted Net Position beginning
Net Pesition December 31

$

City of Vermillion
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2014 2014

2015 {Not Restated) 2015 {Not Restated) 2015 (Mot Restated)
1,383,698 3 1,385,053 5 13,491,130 3 12754171 3 14,874,828 3 14,139,224
313,523 287,661 7,000 - 386,458 287,861
1,483,803 1,545,692 30,261 1,011,477 1,514,084 2,557,369
2,164,952 2,077,118 - - 2,184,852 2,077,118
4,072,280 3,634 580 - - 4,008,343 3,634,580
395,363 390,758 250,180 256,456 645 553 847,212
2813619 9,321,260 13,778,611 14,022,104 23,582,230 23,343,364
1,373,494 1,410,726 - - 1,373,494 1,410,728
2,430,332 2,529,185 - - 2,430,332 2,529,195
1,988,565 1,885,352 - - 1,988,965 1,885,352
545,166 491,071 - - 549,158 491,071
1,382,212 1,325,700 - - 1,382,212 1,325,700
482,999 2,485,337 - - 492,699 2,485,337
281,125 208,517 - - 261,125 208,517
- - 5,159,008 5,055 B58 5,159,008 5,055,658
- - 1,542,802 1,474,754 1,542,802 1,474 754
- . 1,758,756 1,723,732 1,768,758 1,723,732
- - 1,293,291 1,065,297 1,293,291 1,065,297
- - 800 842 788,147 800,842 788,147
- - 1,438,417 1,428,877 1438417 1,428,877
- - 97,913 100,321 97,913 100,321
8,478,283 10,335,898 12,091,029 11,636,738 20,569,312 21,972,684
1,335,338 (1.014,638) 1,687,582 2,385,318 3,022,918 1,370,880
1,137,412 1,147,057 (1,137,412} {1,147,0587) - -
2,472,748 132,419 550,170 1,238,261 3,022,918 1,370,680
34,378,708 34,248 287 37 800,054 36,561,793 72,178,750 70,808,080
B74,185 - 561,388 - 1,435,574 -
35,252 801 34,246,287 38,361,443 36,561,793 73,614,334 70,808,080
37,725,639 5 34,378,708 b3 38811613 $ 37,800,054 $ 78,837,262 $ 72,178,760
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By far the largest portion of the City's net position (69.54%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, building, machinery and equipment) less any refated debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position $8,021,793 (10.48%) represents resources that are
subject to external restriction on how they may be used. Restricted net position includes the
amounts restricted for debt service of $4,684,325 (an increase of $2,869,152), Stormwater
construction of 51,003,863 (an increase of $201,179), Landfill Closure/Postclosure of $122.863 (a
decrease of $7,988), Cumulative reserve of $158,060, Library $28,170 (an increase of $4,804),
parks capital $82,738 (an increase of $71,324), business improvement district of $31,838 (an
increase of $7,777), SDRS Pension Purposes $1,628,737 and other restrictions of $288,296 (an
increase of $32,542), The remaining balance of unrestricted net position of $15,330,828 may be
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Vermillion is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the City's net positicn by
$2,472,748, thereby accounting for 81.8% of the total growth in the net position of the City
Vermillion. Elements of this increase are as follcws:

» Charges for goods & services decreased $1,355 in 2015. General Government increased
$53,201 which is attributable to an increase in the jicenses and permits of $5,961 and
increase storm drainage fee of $12,602. Public Safety increased $11,427 which is
attributable to an increase in parking ticket fees of $8,074. Public Works decrezsed
$146,317 which is atiributable to the decrease in special assessment collections and
public payments for improvements and decrease in state highway and bridge revenue of
$21,564. Heaith and Welfare increased $89,986 due to an increase in ampulance
collections of $32,395 from increased call volume.

* Operating Grants and contributions increased $25,662 in 2015. For 2015, public safety
operating grants increased $10,409 which is attributed E911 state grant of $ 35,020 and
a decrease in county contribution for E911 Communications of $24,318.

= Capital grants and contributions decreased by $62,089 in 2015. For 2015 capital grants
and coniributions consist of public works $397,278 for the West Cherry mill, airport
project grant $27,818, State Transportation Improvement Program funding of $559,241
and public payments for special assessment improvements of $499,466.

» Property taxes increased by $87,834 or 4.22% during the year. This increase is from
growth or new property added to the tax rolls and the State limit on property tax increase
of 1.4%.

10
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* Sales Taxes increased by $356,738 or 10.77%. This would include the first penny sales
tax used for general fund and the second penny sales tax used for capital projects. As
the South Dakota Department of Revenue collects the sales tax on behalf of the City,
information as to the individual area of the increase/decrease is not available.

e Sales taxes for special revenues increased $15,027 or 4.65%. This spacial sales tax is
referred to as BBB sales tax used for advertising and promotion of the City.

e Other General Revenues decreased $4,607 or 1.48%. Contributing to this increase is a
increase in investment earnings of $25,126, an increase in other revenue of $169,345,
and a decrease in the gain on sale of assets of $182,864.

» General Government expenses decreased by $37,232 or 2.64%. The net effect of the
pension adjustment decreased expenses $23,464 and general government professional
fees were down $13,000 for onetime expense of audio visual equipment and updating
ordinance books.

e Public Safety expenses decreased by $98,863 or 3.90%. The net effect of the pension
adjustment decreased expenses $51,249 and vacant positions in police and
communications.

» Public works expenses increased $103,613 or 5.50%. The net effect of the pension
adjustment decreased expenses $11,946 with a $28,256 increase in street department
wages and $11,694 increase in snow removal cosis.

» Health and Welfare expenses increased $58,085 or 11.83%. The net effect of the
pension adjustment decreased expenses $6,508 and an increase in ambulance
department wages of $47,869 attributed to full year of director and increased call
volumes.

11
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s Culture and Recreation expenses increased $56,512 or 1.04% The net effect of the
pension adjustment decreased expenses $16,141 and a loss of sale of fixed assels
increased expenses by $38,866. The other expenses were similar to prior year.

» Conservation and development expenses decreased $1,992,338 from the City's
continued support of vatious programs. The City continued to support numerous
organizations but during 2014 provided onetime funding of $1,083,036 of TIF #5 bond
proceeds to the Vermillion Chamber and Development Company for their residential
development expenses for phase 1 of the Bliss Peinte.

Expenses & Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000 M Expenses

E Program Revenues

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Vermillion’s net position
by $550,170, accounting for 18.2% of the total growth in the government's net position. Key
elements of this increase are as follows:

e Charges for services increased by 5.77% or $736,959. The Electric Fund charges for
services increased 3.24% or $199,783. Electric kwh sales also decreased .15% during
2015, which is attributed to the cool summer and warmer winter weather. Electric rates
were increased to offset increase in supplemental power costs. This was the fourth year
of seasonal electric charges. Water Fund charges for services increased 3.44% or
57,970. Water rates were increased 2.5% in December 2014 to meet the debt service on
the water tower bond. Wastewater Fund revenues increased by $24,949. Wastewaler
rates were not increased for 2015, The Liguor Fund sales increased 20.22% or $251,972
over 2014. The liquor store was relocated to a larger location in January 2015 and a
growler station was added in the fall of 2015. The Joint Powers-Landfill revenue
increased $207,636 over 2014. The landfill revenues increased $233,464 from an
increase in volume of materials received and a rate increase effective December 1, 2014
along with a smaller rate increase effective December 1, 2015 while the sale of recycling
materials revenues portion of the Joint Powers decreased $30,049 due to decreased

12
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market rates for materials being sold. The Golf Fund revenues decreased $13,395, with
green fees decreasing $7,437 and season pass sales decreasing $5,388. These
decreases are attributed to a cool, wet spring and summer.  An increase in the Curbside
Recycling program revenues of $8,044 resulted from an increase in volume and revenue
sharing on increased materials.

¢ Capital grants and contributions decreased $981,186 in 2015. During 2015 a state grant
of $30,291 was received for baler building.

Revenues by Source-Business-Type Activities

2%
Other

0%
Grants &
Contributions

W Charges for Goods & Services
W Other

B Grants and Contributions

Goods & Services
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Financial analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Vermillion uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Vermillion’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a governmant’s net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $11,488,025, as shown on Exhibit 3, which is an increase of $4,678,404 in
compatison with the prior year. Approximately 15.65% of this total amount, or $1,797,656,
constitutes unassigned fund balance which is available for spending at the government's
discretion. The remainder of fund balance is either 1) nonspendable $211,386, $53,326 for
inventory and $158,060 in cumulative reserve 2) restricted $5,034,086 consisting of $277,898 in
Bed, Board & Booze sales tax, $995,786 in starm water fees, $28,170 for library, $559,241 for
Surface Transportation Program, $82,723 for parks capital, $31,838 for Business Improvement
District and $3,058,430 for debt service 3) committed $3,686,983 with $3,186,983 in sales tax
and $500,000 for capital projects which is for a future swimming pool project or 4) assigned
$758,914 for the 2016 budget.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Vermillion. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $2,048,052, as shown in Exhibit 3,
while total fund balance reached $4,077,593. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
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expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 35.31% of total general fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 70.30% of the same amount.

The fund balance of the City's general fund increased $983,259 during the current fiscal year, as
shown in Exhibit 4. Factars in this increase are as follows:

= Anincrease in property taxes of $113,792 or 5.51% and an increase sales tax collection
of $128,465 cr 7.72%.

+ License and Permits revenues increased $64,515 with the majority being from increased
building permits fees of $61,427.

+ Intergovernmental revenues increased $548,302 due to State Surface Transportation
funding being passed directly to the city in the amount of $558,302.

» Charges for goods and services increased $12,868. Ambulance revenues were up
$32,395 based upon increased call volume, decreases in swimming pooi and recreation
fees of $13,253 and decrease in street repairs of $5,604.

e Expenditures in the General Fund increased $55,764 or less than 1%. General
Government decreased $20,813 mainly professional services in general government for
audio visual equipment and finance office publishing costs. Public Safety increased
541,887, with the increase in Police personal services being at full staff and hiring of a
part-time fire inspector for 2015. Public Works decreased $5,601 with many smaller
items increasing and decreasing. Health and Welfare increased $59,019 with the largest
item being the EMS director position filled for a full year. Culture and recreation increased
$6,549 due to a number of factors increasing and decreasing wth no significant items.
Conservation and Development decreased $10,207 with the major decrease being the
VCDC reinvestment program for reimbursement of local sales tax.

The sales tax fund has a total fund balance $3,186,983, all of which is committed for capital
outlay and debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year is $635,369.
Revenues during this period increased by $127,307 compared to the prior year. This is dug to an
increase in sales tax revenue of $127,504 and a decrease in investment earnings of $197.
Expenditures decreased during this period by $219,376, which is largely due to the decrease in
capital outiay. Transfers cut increased by $189,444 tc $806,845. The major item of the increase
is $327,326 to the Prentis Park Pool capital projects and $94,758 to the Mill and Overlay capita!
projects and decrease in the transfer to the Bliss Pointe capital project.

Proprietary funds. The City of Vermillion's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statement, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net positions of the proprietary funds are as follows, Eleciric $5,667,854, Water
$1,002,982, Wastewater $1,316,245, Liquor $252,401, Golf Course $902,030, Joint Powers-
Landfill $510,275 and Curbside Recycling $77,974. The total growth in net position for all funds
in the current year was $524,108. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have
already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type activities.

Genera! Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City of Vermillion adopted a revised budget in September of 2015 and a supplemental
budget in December of 2015 to refine the budget numbers adopted a year eariier. The revenue
was increased by $198,320 (3.91% of the original budget). Expenditures were increased by
$59,440 (.96% of the original budget) and transfers cut increased $59,343. The original and final
budgets are reported on Exhibit 8 on page 58.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Vermillion's investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of December 31, 2015 amount to $77,440,110 (net of accumulated
depreciation). ~ This investment in capital assets inciudes land, buildings and structures,
improvements other than buildings, furniture and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in
progress. During 2015 there was $1,498,000 of additions to the governmental capital assets
while the depreciation for the year was $1,870,647 and $318,960 of capital assets were disposed.

Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the following:

« Construction continued on the electric department substation upgrade project with
$61C,761 expended in 2015 and engineering began on the northeast substation with
$37,331 expended in 2015.

» Construction was completed on the landfill cell 5 totaling $1,320,814 with $136,814
expended in 2015, '

» Engineering continued on the Prentis Park improvements with $340,545 expended in

2015.
City of Vermillion's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Govermmentat Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Land § 1622815 § 1,622815 $ 2487229 § 2487229 § 4,110,044 § 4,110,044
Building & Structure 14,208,374 14,550,810 25,127 456 26,033,908 39,336,830 40,584,719
Improvements other buildings - - 15,221,103 13,990,281 15,221,103 13,990,281
Furniture & Equipmeant 3,799,256 3,998,343 1,568,464 1,808,354 5,367,720 5.806,697
Infrastructure & books 11,813,564 12,037,228 - - 11,813,564 12,037,228
Construction in Progress 426,721 130,927 1,164,128 1,720,771 1,590,849 1,851,698
Total $ 31.871,730 § 32340123 § 45568380 $ 46040544 § 77440110 § 78,380,667

Additional information on the City of Vermillion's capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages
41-44 cf this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Vermilion had a total long-term
debt outstanding of $25,887,479. Total note and bonded debt cutstanding totaled $20,010,877
with the remainder being capital leases of $5,876,602.

The City’s total outstanding debt increased by $1,407,203 or 5.75% during the 2015 fiscal year.
The City issued $2,685,000 in Refunding Certificates of Participation in a Lease-Purchase
Agreement Series 2015 bonds for the crossover refunding of the current Certificates of
Participation in a Lease-Purchase Series 2007. The Series 2015 bonds will be held in escrow
until the bonds can be called in December 2017.
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City of Vermillicn's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenue Bonds  § 1,732,000 § 1732000 3 18075352 $ 19,000,452 $ 19,807,352 § 20,732,452
Notes Payable - - 203,525 328,738 203,525 328,738
Capital Lease 5,710,000 3,230,785 168,602 188,301 5,876,602 3,419,088
Total $ 7442000 § 4,962,785 § 18445479 $ 19,517,491 §$ 25887470 $ 24,480,276

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 44-48 of this
report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance in the general fund increased by $996,839 to
54,077,583, The final budget for 2015 had projected the fund balance to decrease by $161,320.
The City has appropriated $758,814 of the general fund, fund balance for spending in the 2016
fiscal year of which $500,000 is for the Prentis Park pool improvements.

Utility rates were increased for electric in December 2015 to pass along increased purchase of
power costs. Water rates were increased in January 2016 and wastewater rates were adjusted in
April 2015, Landfill rates were adjusted in December 2015. The storm water drainage fee was
increased for 2014 by 4%,

Request for Information
This financiai report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Vermillion's finances
for all those with the interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the

information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed the City Finance Office, 25 Center, Vermillion, SD 570689.
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CITY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2015

EXHIBIT 1

Compoenent
Primary Government Unit
Housing
Governmental Business-type &
Activities Activitias Total Redevelopment
ASBETS
Cash & cash equivalents 3 367,974 $ 1,128,002 1,493 978 10,2865
Investments 8,385,000 6,565,000 14,950.000 -
Receivables (net, where applicabie, of allowance
for uncellectibles)
Taxes receivables 48,554 - 48,554 -
Accounts receivable 163,482 844,853 998,145 8,132
Unbilled accounts receivable - 444 451 444 431 -
Special assessments receivable 466,143 953 467,096 -
Interest receivabie 41,821 23,673 65,494 -
Due from insurance company - 8373 8,373 -
Due from other governments 637,906 31,830 669,736 -
Internal balances (552,413) 552,913 - -
inventories 53,328 1,398,235 1,449,561 -
Net Pension Asset 780,157 486,783 1,275,940
Prepaid expenses 87,667 60,024 127 691 2,068
Deposits 158,060 158 060 -
Restricted assets:
Cash 12,052 1,044,682 1,057,634 5,098
Investments 3,295,478 572,071 3,867,548 -
Interest receivable 1,362 11,788 13,151 -
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 2,049,536 3,651,357 5,700,893 -
Other capital assets, net of depraciation 29,822,194 41,617,023 71,739,217 -
Total capital assets 31,871,730 45 588 380 77,440,110 -
Total assets 45,758,709 58,740,812 104,539,521 24 583
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferred Cutflows 1,383,457 857,783 2,241,240 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payahle 352,922 596,448 1,049,370 10,108
Customer deposits - 90,875 90,675 -
Accrued interest payable 7,888 37,578 45 465 -
Revenue collected in advance 14,499 10,692 25,192 A7
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds payable - 834,114 834,118 -
Notes payable . 63,888 63,8688 -
Capital lease 220,000 - 220,000 .
Accrued leave payable 192,232 164,258 356,490 3,825
Due in merea than one year:
Bonds payable 1,732,000 17,241,233 18,973,233 -
Notes payable - 139,637 138 637 -
Capital lease 5,490,000 166,602 5,656 602 -
Closure - postclosure liability - 296,111 296,111 -
Accrued leave payable 270,310 230,974 501,284 2,544
Total liahilities 8,279,852 19,972,214 28,252 085 16,521
DEFERREDR {NFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pepsion Related Deferred Inflows 1,176,675 714,768 1,891,443 -
NET POSITION .
Net investment in capital assels 26,161,730 27,122,901 53,284,831 -
Restricted for:
BEB tax 268,296 - 288,296 -
Debt service 3,497,320 1,178,908 4,676,228 -
Stormwater 1,003,863 - 1,003 883 -
Parks Capital 82,738 - 82.738 -
Library 28,170 - 28,170 -
Business 'mprovement District 31,838 - 31,838 -
Landfiil closure postclosure - 122,863 122,883 -
Cumuiative reserve-SCPAA 158,080 - 158,060 -
SDRS Pension Purposes 996,932 632,798 1,629,737 -
Other purpeses - - - 6,008
Unrestricted 5,476,685 9,854,143 15,330,828 1,944
Total Net Position 8 37,725,639 3 38,911,613 78,837,252 8,042

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT 2
CITY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Progrem Revenues Changes in Net Pasition
Operating Capital Primary Gavernment Compenent Unit
Charges for Grants & Grants & Governmentai Business-Type Housing &
Functions/Pragrams Expensas Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activilies Total Redevelopment
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government § 1373484 § 377732 8 12.856 s -3 {982,808) § - % (982.906) § -
Public safaty 2430332 48,694 202 077 - (2,088,881) - (2.088,661) -
Public works 1.988.965 357 524 . 1,483,803 {147,638) - {147.638) -
Heallh & welfare 549156 538,048 - - {11.108) - {11.108} -
Culture & recreation 1382212 860,700 4770 - {1,316,742) - {1,316.742) ) -
Conservation & deveicpment 492999 - 3.820 - (489,178} B (489.178) - e -
interest on long-term debt 281,125 - - - {261,125} - (261,125} -
Total governmental activities 8.473.283 1,383,698 313523 1,483,803 (5,297,259} - {5,297 ,259) -
Business-type activities:
Electric 5159008 6,360,888 - - - 1,201,880 1,201,880 -
Water 1,542,802 1,744 865 7.000 - - 209,163 209,163 -
Waslewater 1.758,758 1,853 034 - - - 84,278 94,278 -
Ligquor 1,283,281 1,498,390 - - - 205,009 205,089 -
Gelf 800,842 810,115 B - - (190,727) {180,727 -
Joint powers tandfifl 1.438 417 1,315,471 - 30,291 - {92 655) {92,855} -
Curbside recycling 97,813 108,267 - - - 10,354 10,354 -
Total husiness-typa activities 12.091,028 13,481,130 7.000 30,297 - 1,437,392 1,437,382 -
Totai primary government & 20569312 § 14,874.828 § 320.523 § 1,514,084 § {5.297.255) $ 1,437,392 § (2.859.867) § -
Camponant Unit
Housing & radevelopment 954 780 11,402 893,861 - - - - (48,617)
Tolat component unit § 954,780 § 11,402 § 803.961 §$ - 5 -5 - & - % (49.517)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Proparty taxes - ievied for ganeral purposes 2,164,852 - 2,164,952 -
Sales taxes 3,668 467 - 3,668,467 -
Sales taxes for special reverues 337,878 - 337,878 -
Other state taxes 85,935 - 65,935 -
Unrestricted investment samings 58,413 172,961 231374 104
Miscellaneous revenue 331,373 77,229 408,802 -
Gain en sale of capital assats 5577 - 5577 -
Transfers 1.137.4412 (1,137.412) - -
Tolal general revenues & lransfers 7,770,007 {887,223) 6,882,785 104
Change in net position 2,472,748 550,170 3022318 {49,413)
Net position - beginning 34,378,708 37,800,054 72,178,760 57,455
Prior Pariod Adjustment 374,185 561,389 1,435.674 -
Adjusted Net Position-Beginning 35,252 891 38,361,443 73,614,334 57 458
Net pasition - ending $ 37725635 _% 38911613 8 76637752 $_  Bo47

See Accompanying Notes lo Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowance
for uncollectibies)
Property taxes: delinquent
Accounts receivable
Special assessment receivable
Interest receivable
Cue from other governmenis
Due from other funds
Inventory of supplies
Inventory of stores
purchased for resale
Depaosits
Advances to ather funds
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
interest receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Grant revenue collected in advance
Advance from other funds
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-sales tax and interest

Unavailable revenue-deliquent property tax and interest

Unavailable revenue-deiliguent stormwater fees

Unavallable revenue-special assessmeants and interest

Total deferred inflows of rescurces

Fund balances:

Nonspendable:

Inventory

Cumulative Reserve-SDPAA
Restricted:

Surface Transportation Program

BEB Purposes

Stormwater

Parks Caphal

Library

Business Improvement District

Debt Service Funds
Committed

Sales Tax Purposes

Capital Projects
Assfgned;

Next Year's Budget
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total iabilitles, deferred Inflows of rescurces, and fund balances %

CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2015

EXHIBIT 3

Other

Sales Governmental 2015

General Tax Funds Total
$ 93,221 3 27177 % 223527 % 343,025
3,600,000 2,958,000 1,190,000 7,748,000
48,554 - - 48,554
141,656 - 9,322 160,878
- - 466,143 466,143
13,505 12,271 15,011 40,787
286,445 213352 138,109 837,906
- - 93,250 93,259
43,592 - - 43,502
9,734 - - 9,734
158,060 - - 158,060
- 91,207 - 21,207
- - 12,952 12,952
- - 3,295,478 3,285,478
- - 1,362 1,362
4,384,767 3,302,007 5,445,163 13,141 937
185,931 35,765 129,828 351,524
- - 125,289 125,289
2,187 - 12,312 14,409
- - 487 608 487,808
188,118 35 765 755237 979,120
80,502 79259 12,732 172,493
48,554 - - 48,554
- - 5,968 5,966
- - 448,779 446,779
129,058 79,259 465,477 673,792
53,326 - - 53,328
158,080 - - 158,080
559,241 - - 559,241
- B 277,898 277,898
- - 595,786 995,786
- - 82,723 82,723
- - 28,170 28,170
31,838 31,838
- B 3,058,430 3,058,430
- 3,186,983 - 3,186,983
500,000 - - 500,000
758,914 - - 758,814
2,048,052 - {250,296) 1,797,656
4,077,583 3,186,983 4,224,449 11,489,025
4,394,767 3 3,302,007 % 5445163 3 13,141,937

See Accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements
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EXHIBIT 3A
CITY OF VERMILLION
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET PCSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Amounts reperted for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Total fund balance - governmental Funds (page 20) 5 11,488,025

Capital sssets used in gavernmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reperted in
the funds. 28,920 618

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, capital leases and
accrued leave payable are not due and payables in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bongs payable 3 (1,732,000)
Capital Lease {5,710,000)
Accrued leave payable (451,085) (7.883,085)

Assets such as taxes receivable (delinquent) and

special assessment receivables {current, delinguent

and defarred) are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds, 673,792

Prepaic expenses are reported in the governmental
activities but are not reported in the funds as they da not
provide current economic resources. 67,667

Accrued interest expense from the balance sheet that

require current financial resources from governmental
activities, {7,889)

Net Pension Asset reported in governmental activities is not
an available financial resource and therefore is not reported in the funds. 777,589

Pension related deferred outflows are components of pension
assets and therefore are not reported in the funds. 1,361,457

Pension related deferred inflows are components of pension (1,158,831)
liability and therefore are not reparted in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge

the costs of activities, such as insurance, to individual

funds. The assets, deferred inflows and outfiows, and liabilities of

internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the

statement of net pesition. 3,486,196

Total net pasition - governmental activities (page 18) % 37,725.639

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
21



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND!ITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Revenue:

Taxes:
General property taxes
General sales & use taxes

Business Improvement District Fees

Stormwater fees
Penaities & interest on
delinguent laxes
Licenses & permits
Intergevernmental revenue
Charges for goods & services
Fines & forfeits
Fubllc payments for improvements
Investment earnings
Rentals
Special assessments
Contributicns & donations
fraom private sources
Other
Total revenue
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture-recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfara
Culture-recreation
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of bonds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning
Change in inventory
Fund balance - ending

CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EXHIBIT 4

Other
Sales Governmental 2015
General Tax Funds Total

$ 2177817 3 - 4,978 § 2,182,796
1,792,980 1,791,080 333,965 3,918,025
- - 59,308 59,306

- 207,232 207,232

13,424 - 938 14,362
309,643 - - 309,643
925,836 721,173 1,647,009
535,636 - 1,934 537,570
43,707 - 3,153 46 860

- - 97,712 97,712

9,786 8,661 9,122 27,569
23,709 - - 23,709
155 - 47,190 47,345
19,961 - 115,037 134 968
109,200 - 4,160 113,360
5,861,854 1,799,741 1,605,901 9,367,496
1,185,756 7,837 - 1,203,393
1,879,865 9,921 510,643 2,400,431
954,945 28,742 88,815 1,072,502
521,881 2,000 - 523,881
1,080,176 5,918 13,981 1,100,075
68,153 22,332 402,514 492,999
785 - 215,000 215,785

- - 266,768 266,768

550 - - 550
35,379 37,489 72,868

- 14,925 468,138 483,063

1,200 34,506 340,546 376,252
97,190 196,167 - 293 157
5,800,501 357,627 2,343,896 8,501,924
161,353 1,442,214 (737,995} 865,572
1,155,543 - 1,530,501 2,686,044
(320,057) (806,845) (427,730) (1,554,632)
- - 2,685,000 2,695,000

815,486 (806,845) 3797771 3,826,412
996,839 635,369 3,059,776 4,691,884
3,084,334 2,551,614 1,164,673 6,810,621
{13,580) - - {13,580)

$ 4,077,593 $ 3,185,983 4,224,449 $ 11,489,025

See Accempanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT 4A
CITY OF VERMILLION
RECONCILIATICN OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FCR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Amounts reportad for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 22) 5 4,601 984

Inventories n the governmental funds have been recorded as expenditures when paid.
However, the statement of activities will report these items as expenditures in the period {13,580)
that the corresponding asset is exhausted.

Governmental funds repert capital outlays, Including infrastructure, as expenditures.
However, in the staternent of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depraclation expense.

Depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current year as foliows:

Expenditures for capital assets 5 1,228,080
Cepreciation expense {1,483,737) {267,647

Governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets as revenue
whereas the statement of activities reports the gain on the sale of fixed assats. This
is the effect on the change in net position on the statement of activities. {47,885)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental

funds, while the repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets,
The amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments in the current year is as follows:

Repayment of long-term debt 3 215,785
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (2,695,000) (2,479,215)

Governmental funds report special assessments as revenue when it becomas available,
but the statement of activities includes special assessments as revenue when levied. 350,705

Governmentai funds do not reflect the change in accrued leave as it does not
consume current financial resources. The Statement of Activities reflects the change
in accrued leave through expenditures. {17.575)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not pravide current financial resources
are not reparted as revenues. 83,484

The effect of the change in prepaid insurance which is not reparted in the governmental
funds as it is not available to provide current financial resources. {10,832)

Accrued interest expense reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as expenditures in 347
governmental funds.

Changes in the penston related deferred outflows/inflows are direct components of
pension liability(asset} and are not reflected in the govarnmental funds. 120,863

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cests of certain aclivities,
such as insurance to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal

service funds is reported with governmental activities. 53,158

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 19) $ 2472748

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Currant pssels
Cash
Investmants
Receivables {ret of allowance
for uncollectibies of 546 120}
Accaunts
Linbilled
Special 2esessments
lnterest
Dug from other governments
Due from insurance company
Inventory of supplies
Inventary of stares
purchased far resale
Prepald experses.
Due from other funds.
Total currant assets
Noncurant assets:
Advance to other lunds
Reslricted assets:
Bonds peyable
- Cash
- Investments
- Interast recefvable
Landfill- closure & posteiosure
- Cash
Total noncurrent assets

Met Pension Assets

Capital agsets
Land & improvements
Buildings
Imprevemenis ather than buildings
Fumiture & equiprment
Construction in progress
Less® accumulated depraciation
Total capital assets(nel depl2cialion)
Total nancurrent assels
Total assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.
Pension Reiated Deferred Quiflaws

LIABILITIES
Current fianilities
Accounts payabie
Customer deposis
Accrued inlerest payable
Due to other funds
Bonds payable - current
Notas payeble - current
Revenue collacted in advance
Agcrued leave payable
Total current liabilties
Mengurrent liabililes
Revenue horids
Notes payable
Capital lease payable
Closure-postclosure Fabiity
Accrued leave payable
Tatel nancurrent labifites
Total llabilies

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pansion Related Deferred Inflows

NET PQEITION
Net Investment in capial asaels
Restrigted for:
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for landfill closure & postclosure
Restricted for SORS Panston Purposes
Urreslricted

Total net position

Governmental
_Non-Mapr Acbuligs.
Jainl Powers Curhside Intesnal
Electrie Warar VWastewatar Liguar Golf Couise Landfill Racycing Totais Servge Funds
360092 § 141947 § 106 967 § 28,368 § 67.549 330145 3 20631 % 1125002 $ 24 049
3.800.000 640.000 1.02§.000 25.000 825.000 100.000 50.000 6.565.000 837 000
476.117 125,713 155,440 342 4128 63,705 2207 844 653 2514
287.719 67.482 B4 587 - - B 4,663 444 451 -
- 531 362 - - - - 852 -
14,144 2,166 3,030 124 3,774 43 192 23673 1034
. - R . . 31,830 21.830
- - - - - 8,373 - 8373
762,987 175,504 59,862 - 11,240 78.661 - 1,088,354
- - - 257 a7 50014 - - 307 481
27,620 9,153 9479 7427 2178 4,509 360 60,024
33012 - - - - - - 33012 -
5.861.894 117255 1,444,327 388,828 964 282 617 268 85.053 10.534.206 664.397
396,601 - - - - - - 386,601 -
66,847 134 536 405,689 - - 18,636 - 625708 -
572,071 - . - . - - 572,071 -
11,788 - - - - - 11,789
- - - - 418.974 418,974 -
1.047.308 134,536 405,589 - - 437,610 2,025 143 -
162,601 101 512 78,640 - 49,848 82,022 15,080 489,783 12.468
1,311 100,663 86,429 - 2,230,834 57,992 - 2487 229 -
5,506,455 ©.803,738 14,495,693 - 1,002,738 4,127,863 - 35,218,557
12,645,528 4,373,950 4,134 987 - - 3,146,895 - 24,301,381 -
553,246 166471 2,535,159 99,504 627 298 1,686,924 54,434 5,727,338 5,458,579
1,120,155 - - - 43973 - - 1,164,128 -
[6.133,194) (4.152,501) {8.793.973) (43.921) {981.949) (3.200,253) (40,430 {23.348,231) (2517467}
13,993 612 10.282,321 12,472,208 55,873 2,820,954 5.819,421 14,004 45,568,380 2,842 112
15.040.820 10.426.857 12,677,984 55,873 2,820 954 6.257.021 14.004 47581523 2942 112
21,085.315 11,701.025 14,400,951 444,701 3,935,084 6.956.319 114117 58.617.512 1618.177
286,045 177513 135412 - a7.801 144,428 25484 857.783 22 000
392,127 54,770 70,7686 136,427 §217 35,438 1,708 695,443 1388
60,450 30,225 - - - - 90,675 -
30,247 - 413 - 6,899 17 37,576
- [:Iok:] 373 - - - - 982
205.cao 232,043 314,912 - 62,164 - B834.119 -
- - - - 55625 8253 621,808 -
- - - 9,021 - 1672 10,693 -
57,338 34.898 23.865 - 19,855 26,871 1531 164,258 4.761
743.162 352,545 430,129 135,427 34.193 187 004 13,478 1,898.63% 6.159
6,055,000 4,176,765 5,478,051 - - 150 417 - 17,241,233 -
- - - - - 139,637 - 139.637 -
- - - 166,602 - 166,607 -
- - - - - 296,111 - 296,111 -
80 626 43.072 33.278 - 28,058 37,786 2,133 230,974 6696
6.135.6826 4.225.037 5,511,329 - 28,058 2,171,581 2,153 16.074.557 G896
6 380.788 4.578.382 5,841,458 136,427 62,252 2,358,587 15332 18.873,196 12.859
237,752 148.431 112347 72,0085 121,618 22.525 714,768 17 844
7733512 5,881,512 4,659,332 55873 2,820,954 3,863 088 5,751 27,122,901 2942112
620.460 134,536 405.276 - - 18,636 - 1,178,908
- - - - - 122,863 - 122,862 -
210 894 130,694 101,705 - §5.654 104,832 19,013 H32,798 16 624
5.867.954 1.002.982 1316245 252,401 8902.030 510275 77974 9.725.861 B51.742
14232820 & 7151725 § 8482558 % 302274 8 3858638 4820572 § 102,744 l|7ar3 s 3610478
. el
Adjustment to reflect the consalidation af internal service fund activities relaled to entemprise aclivities 124282
§ 39115613

H

CITY OF VERMILLION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 3t. 2015

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Business-Type Activihes-Enterpnse Funds

EXHIBIT &

Nel Pogttion of Business-tyne Acliviias

See Accompanying Noles (o Financial Statements
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Operating revenue
Charges lor goods and senvices
Surcharge as secunly for debt
Miscellan2ous
Folal cperating révenue

Qperaling expenses
Personal services
Other curent expense
Malerials {cost of goods sald)
Deprecigtion/arnorizatian
Totai operating expenses
Operaling incame (loss)

Nonoperaling revenue (expense):
Interesl earned
Rental revenue
Intarast axpense and fiscal charges
Gain{loss) un discarded equipment
Totat nonopserating revenue {expense)

Income (loss) befere conributions
and transfers

Capiltal contributions & grants
Transfar in
Transfer out

Change in nat position

Tatal net posilion - beglnning
Prior Period Adfustment
Adjusied Net Position Beginning

Total net position - ending

Nen-#ajor Activities-
Jonl Powers Curbside imernal
Elecinc VWater Wastewater Liquor Golf Gourse Landfll Recycling Totals Service Funds
550841 & 1.449231 § 1.514.528 5 1.498,390 § 810,115 § 1,130,256 § 108077 & 11.819.022 % 542,471
717,330 272,428 330,834 - - - - 1,320.592 -
135.127 23,306 7.872 - - 183.994 180 350.2B% -
8,380 883 1.744.96% 1,853.034 1.498.380 610,115 1,314.250 108.267 13,480.908 542.471
832,724 544 228 398 635 - 375,038 507,861 90,181 2747547 85.050
340,422 328,875 588,801 253,086 240,229 452,551 4,919 2,208,803 15.480
3,045,515 231.384 - 1,028 657 135 572 - - 4.441,104
560,875 320,586 B08,89% 6,797 57.841 4236811 2,495 1980814 376.810
4,770,536 1.425.059 1.587,135 1,288,550 808,650 1,384.023 27,573 11,278,558 477,440
1,581,352 319,906 255,889 208,840 {198,565) (80,773) 10882 2,111,351 65,031
157,937 374 4674 138 4,521 1.681 2469 172,981 2,652
. 2,497 - - 73,732 - - 77229 -
(374,980} {120,000 (166,356} - - (54,389) (341) (718 156) -
{16,664) - 72 {4,741) - 1.221 - (21.156) 8,577
(233,707) {112,852} (162,654) {4.803) 78,283 (61,487) (72) (487,122} 8,230
1,347 645 207,054 93,245 205,237 (118,312} (121,280} 10,620 1,624,229 73281
- 7.000 - - 30,281 - 37,291 -
9,000 - - - - - - 9,000 6,000
{884,250} (18.583) {28,670} {194.200) - - M (1,146.412) -
471,695 175,471 64,568 11,037 (118,312 (80,5649} 10.620 524,708 79.261
13,675.805 5.,855.844 8,324,443 297,237 3,948,823 4,620,293 75,587 3,516,484
18%.520 116.408 83,549 - 58,127 1,248 18,537 14,733
13,761,125 6,976,254 8,417,082 207.237 4,006,850 4711641 92,124 3,531,217
14232820 5 7151725 § B 482,558 § 308,274 § 3,888,638 § 4820572 § 102,744 ) 3.610.478
Adjusimenl to reflect the consalidation ol internal servica fusd activitles relaled to enletprise activities 26.062
3 550.170

Change in Net Positlan of Business-lype Activilies (page 19).

1

CiTY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITICN
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Busingess-Type Aclivitiss-Enterpnse Funds

EXHIBIT 6

Govemmenlal

See Accompanying Noles lo Financial Slalements
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 5

Cash received fram inlerfund services provided
Cash paid for personal services
Cash paid for inferfund services
Cash pzid o suppliers
Ne! cash provided (used) by aperating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capits| assets
Grants
Proceeds from sale of assels
Principal paid on bonds and capilal leases
Intarest paid on bonds and capital leases
Net cash {used for) capital and
refated financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dua from other funds
Advances to Other Funds
Transfer In
Transfer (out)
Met cash provided by {used for)
non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investmenis
Purchase of invesiments
Sale of invesimenls

Net cash provided by {used for) Investing activities

Net Increasa (decraase) in cash and cash equivalents
©ash and cash equivelents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents and of year 5

RECCONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASBH PROVIDED BY OFERATING ACTIVITIES

QOperating income {|oss) 3
Adjustments to reconcile nel operaling income
({loss) lo net cash provided {used) by oparating activilies:
Depreclation
Rental ravenue
{increase) decrease in assels and intrease
(decrease} in liabililies:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Invantory
Prapaid expenses
Nel Penslon Asset
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Daferred tnflows of Resources
Accaunts payable
Revernus collected in advance
Leave llabillty
Closure lkabilily
Customer deposits
Net eash provided by operating aclivities S

Mancash investing, capital and financing aclivities:
Exchange of payables for capllal assets %
Gain{loss) on disposal of vapital assels

not affecting operating income
Total nencash ivesting, capital end financing activilies 5

Recanciliation 6f cash and cash equivalents:

Unrestricled 1
Reslricted
Total reconciliation of cash & cash equivalents $

EXHiBIT 7
CITY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDQ DECGEMBER 31, 2015

Business-Type Acifvities-Enterprise Funds Govemmental
Non-Major Aclvities-
Joint Powers Curbside Internal
Electric Warer Wasiewater Liguar Golf Course Landfilt Recycling Tolals Service Funds
5878121 § 1.746.883 § 1845811 & 1498699 § 691617 § 1362726 § 108.857 & 13,232,714 § -
410.901 23170 8.877 - - - - 442 948 542,581
1845573} {660.251) (423 ,600) - {375,949) {517.013) (92.072) (2.814.458) (85.263)
(833} {85.754) (94 232) {@,879) (28,204) {7,018} - (224,820} -
13.477.834) (498.373) 1478.283) _ (1.310.878) {358,660 (438.877) {4,481 (6,517,456} {15.748)
2.064 682 65,675 861,563 179,042 (83,196) 399,818 12,304 4,11¢ 888 442.472
(1.033.548) (244 550) (28,790} (24,879} {16,236) (433.563) - {1,784 ,366) (234,422}
- 7,000 - - - aa, 201 - 37,281 -
750 - - - - 3,180 - 3,500 15,850
{200.000} (302.108) {377 .575) - - {184,281} (B.050) 1,072,012y -
(375.663) (120.080) (168,401} - - (85,837) {358 (748 448) -
(1.508.5671) {669,746) (572,766) (24 879 (18,936) (670,240) (8,408) {3,363,636) (218.472)
293,114 40,282 {373} 51,814 - - - 384,838
{327.307) - - - - - - {327,307) -
$.000 - - - - - - 8,000 €,000
{884,950} (38,583) (28.879) {194,200) - - - {1,146.412) -
(910,141) 1,699 {29,052) {142 388) - - - {1,079,880) 6,000
154,912 4,242 4,626 452 1,576 3.084 212 168,105 2,087
(638) . (250,000) - - - . (250,838} (225,000}
575,000 $0.000 - 50,000 25,000 350,000 - 1,050,000 -
720,274 54,243 (245,374} 50,452 28,576 353,084 212 968,487 (222,943}
275,254 81.a7m 14,371 82,229 (65,558) 82,562 4,108 444,830 7,057
151,688 214612 488 285 36,139 123 405 685,193 16,523 1,726 845 16,882
428,542 5 276.482 § 512658 § 86,388 § 67,849 3§ 7B7 755 5 2DEM $ 2170884 § 24,040
1,081,332 § 219906 § 255,899 3§ 209,840 & {196,588) B9773) § 10692 3% 2,111,351 § 65,031
580,875 320,596 B08 699 6,797 57,841 423811 2,495 1,880,814 376,410
- 3,487 - - 73,732 - - 77,229 -
25924 20,486 2,654 309 2,641 23760 580 76,564 10
- - - - 24 716 - 24716 -
(64,551) 35,788 {1,817} (70,128) {2,365) 10 464 - (92,624 -
3,393 {90y 1,934 (873) 421 {373) 203 4,815 -
118,443 74327 63,161 - 38,072 55,987 5046 353,848 9,943
(80.977) {49,728} (34,538) - {24,528) (42.070) {7,815) {239,855} {6,027)
{62.840) {38,805) (36,779) - {21,071} (27.501) 4517 {181,539} {5.807)
(31,672) (19.568) 18,150 32 895 {1,119) (19,544) 235 {20,614} {266}
- - - - 4,925 - - 4,929 -
12,528 (1.747} {15,809) - 45186 4,432 571 4,508 2,578
- - - - - 16,109 - 16,100 -
2,210 1,105 - - - - - 3.315 -
2064.682 & 865.675 § 961563 § 179,042 § (63.196) $ 3959818 § 12304 & 4,119,388 § 442,472
85602 § -5 B -5 -3 -5 - § 85592 § -
(16.664) (458} - {4.741) - - - (21,873 198,451
69028 § (468) § - 8 @741 % - B - 5 - & 63819 § 196.451
360,095 § 141,947 & 106,967 § 98 368 § 87,848 % 330,145 § 20,631 § 1,128,002 % 24,048
66 847 134 538 405 689 - - 437610 - 1.044,882 -
426842 § 276483 § 512,656 § 98,368 § 87,848 § 767.755 § 20,831 % 2170684 § 24,048

See Accompanying Notes lo Financial Slatements
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City of Vermillion
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
December 31, 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Vermillion was incerporated February 16, 1877, under the provisions of South Dakota
Codified Law, as amended. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government.
The funds included in this report are controfled by or dependent upon the municipality's governing
board.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAR). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements
and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by
the City are discussed beiow.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Vermillion ccnsists of the primary government {which includes all of the funds,
organizations, institutions, agencies, departments and offices that make up the legal entity, plus
those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary respensibility, even though those
fiduciary funds may represent organizations that do not meet the criteria for inclusicn in the
financial reporting entity); those organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable; and other crganizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the financial reporting
entity’'s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The City is financially accountable if its City Council
appoints a voting majority of another crganization's governing body and it has the ability to
impose its will on that organization, cr there is a potential for that crganization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the City (primary government),
The City may also be financially accountable for another organization if that organization is
fiscally dependent on the City.

The Housing and Redevelopment Commission of the City of Vermilicn, South Dakota
{Commissicn) is a proprigtary fund-type, and is required to be reperted as a discretely presented
component unit. The five members of the Commission are appointed by the Mayor, with the
approval of the City Council, for five-year, staggered terms. The Commission elects its cwn
chairperson and recruits and employs its own management personne! and other workers., The
City Council, though, retains the statutory authority to approve or deny or otherwise modify the
Commission's plans fc construct low-income housing units, or to issue debt, which gives the City
Council the ability to impose its will on the Commission. Separately issued financial statements
of the Housing and Redevelopment Commission may be obtained by writing to the Commission
at PO Box 382, Vermillion, SD 57068,

Joint Ventures — A joint powers agreement betwesen the City of Yankton, City of Vermillion,
Yankton County and Clay County was adopted in 1994. The purpose of this agreement is to
provide for the joint ownership, administration and operation of a sclid waste disposal and
recycling system including; a solid waste transfer station or stations, the transportaticn of solid
waste, a sanitary landfill licensed by the State of South Dakota, recycling program and facilities,
establishing and collecting such fees as are necessary to support the joint operation and such
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

other operations and faciiities as are necessary to exercise the primary responsibilities
established under the joint powers agreement. It Is not the purpose of the agreement to create a
separate entity. The membership of the Advisory Board consisis of one member of the
governing body of each participating government, the city managers of the Cities of Yankton and
Vermiilion, and cne citizen chosen by each participating governing body. The undivided interest
in the joint agreement is reported as Joint Powers-Landfill as an enterprise fund. A separate
financial statement for the joint venture is not issued.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements
Government-wide Financial Statements;

The City's government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its
component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable. This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as
an entity and the change in the City’'s net position resulting from the current year's activities. The
City's general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, and internal service funds are
classified as governmental activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental, business-type and
component unit activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
are reported on a fufl accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets
and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position is reported in
three parts-net investments in capital assets, restricted net position and unrestricted net position.
The City first uses restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
City's functions (general governmental, public works, public safety, health & welfare, culture &
recreation, conservation & development) and each segment of the business-type activities. The
functions are supported by general government revenues and related program revenues,
operating grants and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the
function or a business-type activity, Operating grants include operating specific and discretionary
(either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues or receipts, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.  Government resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

The emphasis in fund financial staterents is on the major funds in either the governmental or
business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds. The City
can electively add a fund, as a major fund, which has a specific community focus, The nonmajor
funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. The various funds reported in
the financial statements are grouped into fund types as follows:

Governmental Fund Types — The focus of the governmentaj funds' measurement (in the fund
statements) is upon the determination of financial position and changes in financial position
(sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than upor net income. The following
is a description of the governmental fund types of the City:

General Fund — The General fund is the general operating fund of the municipality. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in ancther fund.

Special Revenue Funds — The Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific
revenug sources that are legally restricted tc expenditure for specific purposes (not including
. major capital projects).

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs not being
financed by proprietary funds.

Capital Projects Funds — The Capital Projects fund accounts for the acquisition of capital
assets or construction of major capital projects not being financed by Proprietary Funds.

Proprietary Fund Types ~ The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of
operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. Operating revenues
and expenses are distinguished from non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goads in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and
expenses nct meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The
principal operating revenues of enterprise funds are charges to customers for services.
Operating expenses consist of cost of sales and services, administrative expensas and
depreciation on capital assets. The U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles used are
those applicable to similar businesses in the private sector.

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations (a) that are
financed and operated in @ manner similar to private business or enterprises, where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation} of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds ~ Internal Service funds account for operations that provide services to
other departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

The City’s internal service funds are presented in the proprietary fund financial statements.
These services benefit governmental and business-type functions; as such the resulis of
operations have been allocated and are included within governmental and business-type
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Note 1 -~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
activities in the government wide financial statements.
A description of the City’s internal service funds is as follows:
Copier-Fax-Postage Fund — The copier-fax-postage fund is used to account for all operating

cost and replacement of the central copier, postage and fax machine at city hail. All departments
are billed for copies, postage, and faxes used at a cost plus depreciation.

Unemployment Insurance Fund — This fund has been established to account for the City self-
insurance for unemployment insurance claims.

Equipment Replacement Fund — The equipment replacement fund is used to account for
rental of equipment used by all City departments and to provide the means to purchase
replacement equipment when needed, All the major items of the city's rolling stock are contained
in this fund.

Custodial Services — The custodial services fund is used fo account for the costs associated
with providing janitorial services for city buildings.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — See the description above. The General Fund is always considered to be a
major fund.

Special Revenue Fund:

Sales Tax Fund — This fund is used to account for sales tax revenue in excess of the amount
received if the rate of sales tax were one percent. The state law was changed to remove the
language that restricted the use of the second penny sales tax revenues allowing for local control
of the two percent tax revenues. A City erdinance was adopted that designated the usage of the
sales tax proceeds in excess of one percent and provides these funds may be used only for
capital improvement (definition of “capital” to include the accounting definition of capital item
currently being an item over $500), land acquisition, the funding of public ambulances and
medical emergency response vehicles, nonprofit hospitals with fifty or fewer licensed beds, and
other public care facilities or nonprofit health care facilities with fifty or fewer licensed beds, the
transfer to the special 911 fund authorized by SDCL § 34-45-12, the purchasing of fire fighting
vehicles and equipment, debt retirement, major building repair projects (roof repair, etc.), capital
project planning, feasibility studies, and the minor rehabliitation, major rehabilitation, or
reconstructicn of streets as defined in the June 19984 South Dakota Department of
Transportation’s pavement Condition Survey Guide for City Streets.

The City reports the foliowing major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the governments' electric distribution
operation.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Water Fund ~ This fund accounts for the activities of the government's water treatment and
distribution operation.

Wastewater Fund - This fund accounts for the activities for the government's sanitary sewer
collection and treatment operations.

Liquor Fund — This fund accounts for the operation of the City package off-sale liquor store, In
November 2008 the City entered into a contract for management of the liquor store. Under the
contract, the city accounts for all the operations with the manager paid a fee plus a percentage of
the profits,

Gelf Course Fund - This fund accounts for the activities of the public 18-hole golf course and
residential housing development. All marketed housing sites have been sold resulting in eighty-
two single family homes, four twin homes, fifteen townhouse units and one multiunit.

Joint Powers Landfill-Recycling — On April 9, 1994 The City of Vermillion, City of Yankton,
Clay County and Yankton County entered into a jeint powers operation for fandfill and recycling.
The fund accounts for the activities of the landfill and recycling center located in Vermillion, The
transfer station and recycling in Yankicn are accounted for by the City of Yankton.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when” revenues and expenditures or
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of
the measurement focus,

Measurement Focus:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental,
business-type and component unit activities are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus, applied on the accrual basis of accounting.

Fund Financial Statements:

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting are applied to gevernmental fund types, while the "econcmic
resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are applied to the proprietary
fund types.

Basis of Accounting:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental, and
business-type, and component unit activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues and related assets are recorded when earned

(usually when the right to receive cash vests); and, expenses and related liabilities are recorded
when an obligation is incurred (usually when the obligation tc pay cash in the future vests).
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Fund Financial Statements:

All governmentai fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Their revenues, including property taxes, are recognized when they become measurable and
avallable. "Available” means resources are collected or to be collected soon enough after the
end of the fiscal year that they can be used to pay the bills of the current period. The accrual
period for the City is 30 days. The revenues which are accrued at December 31, 2015 are
property taxes, speciai assessments, and intergovernmenta! revenues. Licenses, fines and
permits are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable unti received
in cash.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not
available. Available means collecticle within the current period or soen enough thereafter tc be
used to pay liabilities of the current pericd. Reported unavailable revenues are those where
asset recognition criteria have been met but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been
met.

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to
this general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recognized
when due.

All proprietary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they
are incurred.

D. Interfund Eliminations and Reclassifications:

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements while direct expenses are not eliminated.,

Government-wide Financial Statements:

In the process of aggregating data for the government-wide financial statements, some amounts
reparted as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated
or reclassified, as follows:

a. In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the primary government,
ameunts reported as interfund recejvables and payables have been eliminated in the
governmental and business-type activities columns, except for the net, residual
amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are
presented as Internal Balances.

b. In order to minimize the doubling-up effect of internal service fund activity, certain
“centralized expenses” including an administrative overhead component, are charged
as direct expenses to funds or programs in order to show all expenses that are
associated with a service, program, department, or fund. When expenses are
charged, in this manner, expense reductions occur in the internal Service Funds so
that expenses are reported only by the function to which they relate.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Deposits and Investments

State statutes authorize the City to invest in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL 4-
BA-1, 8.22-6, 9-22-6.1, and 9-22-6.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits.
Qualified depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their
other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit
accounts that exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible
securities, a qualified public depository may furnish revocable standby letters of credit issued by
Federal Home Loan Banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank’s public debt rating
which may not be less that “AA” or better or a qualified public depository may furnish a corporate
surety bond of a corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota. Deposits and
investments during the year have not varied from these statutes and were consistent with those
held by the City at year-end.

Deposits

The City's deposits at December 31, 2015 consist of bank deposits that are covered by Federal
depository insurance or for the accounts that exceed deposit insurance eligibie collateral or
revocable standby leiter of credit as required by SDCL 4-6A-3 were maintained to insure there
would be no loss of public funds. Deposits also consist of nonnegotiable certificate of deposits
with a carrying value of $15,250,000. The City's bank deposits, per banks, at December 31, 2015
were $16,441,419 and $16,363 in deposits of the Vermillicn Housing and Redevelopment
Commission for total bank deposits of $16,457,782.

Investment

In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits municipal funds to be invested in (a) securities of the United
States and securities guaranieed by the United States government either directly or indirectly,
including without limitations, United States treasury bills, notes, bonds, and other obligations
issued or directly or indirectly guaranteed by the United States government, or otherwise directly
or indirectly backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; provided that, for
other than permanent, trust, retirement, building, and depreciation reserve funds, such securities
shall either mature within eighteen months from the date of purchase or be redeemable at the
option of the holder within eighteen months from the date of purchase; or (b) repurchase
agreements fully coilateralized by securities described in (a) and meeting the reguirements of
SBDCL 4-5-9, if the repurchase agreements are entered into only with those primary reporting
dealers that report to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and with the one hundred largest
United States commercial banks, as measured by domestic depcesits; or (¢) in shares of an open-
end, no-load fund administered by an investment company registered under the Federal
Investment Company Act of 1940, whose shares are registered under the federal Securities Act
of 1833 and whose only investment are in securities described in (a) and repurchase agreements
as described in (b).

The City also participates in the South Dakota Public Funds Investment Trust (SDFIT). The
SDFIT was established under SDCL 1-24 and is an external investment pool created for South
Dakota loca! government investing. A nine-member board regulates it with representation from
municipalities, school districts and counties. The net asset value of the SDFIT money market
account (GCR) Is kept at one-dollar per share by adjusting the rate of return on a daily basis.
Earnings are credited to each account on a monthly basis. The investment in SDFIT is unrated.
The City’'s SDFIT balance at December 31, 2015 was $1,344,388.
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Investments are stated at fair value. Accordingly, changes in fair value of investments at year-
end are reflected as a component of earnings on investments.

Interest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City's strategy has been to establish a maturity schedule that has investments
maturing in a laddered fashion with only a portion of the total portfolio being reinvested each
month. This technique reduces the risk that all or most of the investments will mature and be
reinvested at a time of relatively low interest rates.

Credit Risk

The City complies with the state law limits for investments as stated above. In 2009 the City
adopted a separate policy for credit risk that complies with the state law.

Custodial Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits this is the risk that is the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may
not be returned. State law SDCL 4-6A-3 requires depositories to maintain at all times,
segregated from their other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent
of the public deposit accounts which exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA.

Custodial Risk — Invastment

In the case of investments this is the risk that in the event of a bank faiiure, the City's investments
may not be returned.

Assiagnment of Investment Income

State law allows income from deposits and investments to be credited to either the General Fund
or the fund making the investment. The City's policy is to credit all income from investments to
the fund making the investment.

F. Restricted Cash and Investments

The City's restricted cash and investments and the nature of the restriction is as follows:

Fund Restricted By Amount
Special Assessment Bonds Fund Bond Cowenants § 250,000
Prentis Park Improvements Bond Covenants 58,000
City Hall Debt Senice Fund External Parties 3,000,430
Electric Fund Bond Cowenants 638,918
Water Fund Bond Cowenants 134,536
Wastewater Fund Bond Cowenants 405,685
Joint Powers-Landfll Fund Bond Covenants 18,6386
Joint Powers-Landfll Fund State Agency 418,974
Total Restricted Cash and Investments § 4,925183
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The City's restricted investments are comprised of investments issued by government-spensored
enterprises (GSE's) or federally related institutions that are guaranteed directly cr indirectty by the
U.S. government (U.S. Agencies) as follows:

Restricted Investments Amount 12/31/2015
U.S Treasury Note $ 2,995,478 AAA
First Bank and Trust CD 200,000

CorTrust CD 100,000

U.S Treasury Bond 321,125 AAA
Money Market 2,946 AAA
First Bank and Trust CD 248,000

Restricted Investments $ 3,867,549

G. Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds to finance
operations, provide services, construct assets, and sarvice debt. To the exfent that certain
transactions between funds have nct been paid or received as of December 31, 2015, balances
of short-term interfund amounts payable or receivable have been recorded as: "due to other
funds’, and “due from other funds”, respectively. Noncurrent portions of interfund loan
receivables are reporied as advances. Any residual balance outstanding between governmental
activities and business-type activities are reportad in the government-wide financial statements as
internal balances. The purpose of interfund balances is te finance short-term cash flow shortages
of various funds and fo account for the currant portion of special assessment bonds.

An additional $124,282 is included in the internal balances of the governmental funds and
business-type funds on the Statement of Net Position. This represents the adjustment to reflect
the consclidation of the internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds as shown in the
Statement of Net Position-Proprietary Funds.

The compesition of short-ferm interfund balances as of December 31, 2015 is as follows;

Short-term Short-term
Interfund Interfund
Receivahles Payables
Special Revenue Funds:
911 Fund $ $ 56,275
Enterprise Funds:
Electric 33,012 -
Water - . 609
Wastew ater - 373
Capital Projects Funds:
Alrport - 23,581
Mill Overtay 93,259 -
Debt Service Funds:
Special Assessments - 45,433
5 126,271 % 126,271
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The composition of long-term advances as of December 31, 2015, is as follows:

Advance Advance
to (from)
Enterprise
Electric $ 3968601 % -
Debt Service
TIF District No. 6 - 81,207
Special Assessment - 356,601
Special Revenue
Sales Tax 91,207 -

$ 487,808 $ 487,808

The advances consist of Special Assessment Bonds which were purchased by the Electric
Enterprise Fund and are payable from the Special Assessment Debt Service Fund, Water Fund
and Wastewater Fund. The current portion of the bonds is shown as short-term interfund
receivable/payable while those amounts due and payable after one year are recorded as
advances. The advance between the Sales Tax Fund and TIF District No. 8 is to cover current
debt service payments on the related debt. Repayment on the advance will be made as TIF
revenues become available.

H. Inventory and Prepaid ltems

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFQ)
method. In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements inventory
is recorded as an asset at the time of purchase, and charged to expense as it is consumed. [n
the governmental fund financial statements, purchases of inventory items are recorded as
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. Reported inventories are
equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute
“available spendable resources” even though they are a component of net assets.

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2015 are
recorded as prepaid items in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary
funds financial statements.

I. Deferred Qutflow/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows

of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future pericd(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
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Deferred cutflows of resources consist of unrecegnized items not yet charged to pension expense
and contributions from the employer after the measurement date but before the end of the
employer's repcrting period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has
only one type of item, which arises onfy under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that
qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported
only in the governmental funds balance sheet The governmenta! funds report unavailable
revenues from three sources: sales, special assessments, and interest income. Deferred inflows
of resources in the statement of Net Position consist of pension related revenues. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of rescurces in the period that the amounts become
available,

J. Cash Flows

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to
be cash equivalents.

K. Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

L. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and all other tangible or
intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a
single reporting period. Assets with an initial individua! cost of $500 or more are considered
capital assets. Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Contributed assets are reported at their fair market value as of the
date received. Additions, improvements, and cther capital cutlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. Infrastructure has been capitalized using historical or estimated historical
cost beginning in 1980 as required by GASB 34. Depreciation on all assets excluding land and
construction in process is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated lives:

Buildings 33-50 Years
Improvement Other Than Buildings 30-33 Years
Furpiture & Equipment 3-15 Years
Infrastructure 15-40 Years
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Interest costs for capital asset construction within enterprise funds are capitalized. However, all
other interest costs are recorded in the debt service fund. Interest costs incurred during 2015
were $926,763 of which $7,064 were capitalized.

M. Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Leave

Annual leave is earned by the employees at the rate of 48 hours to 200 hours per year depending
on length of service. Upon termination, employees are entitled to receive compensation for their

accrued annual leave balance on the basis of their current rate of pay. Sick leave is earned by
the employees at the rate of 120 to 160 hours per year depending on length of service to a
maximum of 1700 hours. Upon termination, employees with five years or more of service are
entitled to receive compensation for their accrued sick leave balance on the basis of their current
rate of pay times one-third of their sick leave balance. Compensation may not exceed one third
of 720 hours for § to 10 years of service, and one-third of 760 hours for more than 10 years of
service.

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave including related employee benefits that is
expected to be liguidated with expendable available financial rescurces is reported as an
expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental fund financial statements only for employees that have
resigned or retired. Amounts of vested or accumutated vacation and sick leave including related
employee benefits that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Vested or accumulated
vacation and sick leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds
as the benefits accrue to employees.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For
other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available
financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of
such obligations is reported in the government-wide financial statements. Long-term liabilities
expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

0. Equity Classifications
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Equity is classified as Net Position and is displayed in three components:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the outstanding balances
of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition
censtruction or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints places on their use either

by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or faws and regulations of other
governments: of (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legistation.
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3. Unrestricted Net Position - Alf other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted"
or "net investment in capital assets".

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish between
"Nonspendable”, "Restricted”, "Committed", "Assigned" and "Unassigned” components.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements.

P. Application of Net Posifion

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net position, pricr to the use of unrestricted net position,
when an expense is incurred for purpeses for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions
are available.

Q. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

In Accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the Municipaiity classifies governmental fund
balances as follows:

= Nonspendable — includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it
is not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints

» Restricted — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained
due to constitutional provisions or enabiing legislation.

» Committed — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
that are internally imposed by the government through format action of the highest level
of decision making authority (i.e. City Council) and does not lapse at year-end. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed remains in place unti! a similar action is taken to remove
or revise the limitation.

* Assigned — includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balances may be
assigned by action of the City Council,

« Unassigned — includes positive fund balance with in the General Fund which has not
been classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in
other governmental funds,

The Municipality uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted
fund baiance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such
as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Government would first
use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when
expenditures are made.

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of
an ordinance. Assigned fund balance is established by the City Council through adopticn or
amendment of budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets,
construction, debt service or for other purposes).
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Property taxes attach as an enforceabie lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are
levied on or before October 1 and payable in two installments on or before April 30 and October
31 of the following year. The county bills and collects the City’s taxes and remits them to the City.
The City accrues all definquent property tax revenue received with 30 days after December 31,
2015,

The City is permitted by state statute to levy the following amounts of taxes per $1,000 of taxable
valuation of the property in the municipality:

General Fund $27
Bond Redemption Funds Amounts Required by
Bond Agreements
Judgement Fund
{Upont Judgement Being Made) $10
The combined tax rate to finance municipal services including principal and interest on long-term
debt for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $6.114 per $1,000 of taxable valuation.

Note 3 — Receivables

Receivables are reported net of uncoliectivle amounts. Total uncollectible amounts related to
revenues of the current period are as follows:

Uncollectibles related o special assessments ] 35,028
Uncollectibles related to ambulance charges 21,651
Uncollectibles related to mobile home fees 364
Uncollectibles related te misceilaneous fees 1,291
Uncellectibles refated to electric charges 27,711
Uncollectibles related to w ater charges 50813
Uncollectibles related to w astew ater charges 7,321
Uncoflectibles related to golf course charges 4 561
Uncollectibles related to curbside recycling charges 614

% 104,454

Amounts due from other governments include $531,477 from the State of South Dakota, $78,221
due from Clay County, $31,830 due from the City of Yankten, and $27,208 due from the Federal
Government. The City alsc has $8,373 due from insurance for a fire that occurred at the landfill

in2012.
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A summary cf the changes in the capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2015, is as
follows:

January 1, December 31,
2015 Additions Delations 2015

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land 3 1,221,441 & - ) - 5 1,221,441
Infrastructure Land 401,374 - - 401,374
Construction in Progress 130,827 459,824 {1684.030) 426 721
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,763,742 459,824 {164,030} 2,048,538
Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings 19,188,442 183,167 (10,068) 19,371,541
Furniture & Equipment 8,209,806 421,070 (234,558) 8,488,317
Books 1,898,024 77,781 {73,563 1,802,242
Infrastructure 21,144 758 510,188 {779} 21,654,167
Total capital assets, being depreciated 50,531,030 1,202,206 (318,969) 51,414,267
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buiidings (4,637,632) (531,324) 8,789 (5,162,167)
Furniture & Equipment (4,301,463) (561,383) 175,785 (4,887,061)
Books (B27.431) {37,287) 40,461 {624,237)
Infrastructure {10,178,123) (740,673) 188 (10,218,608}
Total Accumulated Depreciation (19,844,649} (1,870,647} 223,223 (21,582,073)
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 30,586,381 (668,44 1) (95,746) 29,822,184
Governmenta! activities capitai assats, net . 3 32.340,123 § {208,817 §  (259,778) § 31,871,730

The following commitments are included in construction in progress:

Total Expended
Project thru
Autharization 12/31/2015

Culture & Recreation:

Airport $ 500,000 % 30,232
Swimming Pool 6,131,674 360,566
Main & Traffic Signals 48,000 35,923

$ 6679674 % 426,721
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Business-Type Activitias:

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land and Improvements

Construction in Progress

Totai capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings

Improvements Other than Buildings
Furniture & Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less: Accumutated Depreciation for,
Buildings

Improvements Cther than Buildings
Furniture & Equipmant

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Asseis, being depraciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

5

The following commitments are included in construction in progress:

Golf Course Housing Sites

Electric Substation
Bectric NE Substation

Balance Balance
January 1, Deacember 31,
2015 Additions Deletions 2015
2487229 § - $ - 2,487,229
1,720,771 648,092 {1,204,735) 1,164,128
4,208,000 648,002 (1,204,735) 3,881,357
35,214,429 34,872 {12,744) 36,236,557
22,392,670 1,958,786 {50,005) 24,301,361
5,655,908 107,534 (40,106) 5,727,336
83,267 007 2,101,182 {102,845) 65,265,254
(9,180,520} (934,724} 6,143 (10,109,101)
(8,402,389} {702,252) 24,383 {8,080,258)
{3,851,584) (343,838) 36,620 4,158.872)
(21,434,463) {1,980,914) 67,146 (23,348,231)
41,832 544 120,278 (35,799) 41,917,023
46,040 544 § 768,370 § (1,240,534} 45,568,380
Total Expended
Project thru
Authorization 12/31/2015
3 252804 % 43,973
1,169,216 1,082,824
400,000 37,331
3 1,822,020 $ 1,164 128
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Gowernmental Activities:

General Government $ 199,612
Fublic Safety 117,539
Pubiic Works 915,628
Health & Welfare 30,632
Culture & Recreation 230,326
Total depreciation expense
- Governmental Activities 1,493,737
- Internal Senice Funds 376,910

$ 1,870,647
Business-Type Activities:

Electric $ 560,875
Water 320,586
Wastewater 608,689
Liguor 6,797
Golf Course 57,841
Joint Powers Landfill 423,611
Curbside Recycling 2,485
Total depreciaticn expense
- Business-Type Activities $ 1,080,914

A summary of changes in capital assets for the discretely presented component unit is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Component Unit:
Capital Assets, being depreciated
Furniture & Equipment S 3,628 S -5 - 5 3,628
Total capital assets being depreciated 3,628 - - 3,628
Less:
Accumulated Depreciation {3,628) - - (3,628)
Tota! Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 5 - 8 -8 - ) -
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Reconciliation of Net Investment in Capital Assets:
Governmental Business-Type

tand and Improvements $ 1,622815 % 2,487,229
Construction in Progress 428,721 1,164,128
Capital Assets

{Net of

Accumulated Depreciation) 29,822 164 41,917,023
Less:

Revenue Bonds - (18,075,352)

Notes Payable - {203,525)

Capital Leases {5,710,000) (166,602)
Net Investment in

Capital Assets $ 26161730 3% 27,122,801

Note 5 — Long-Term Debt

Notes Payable

The City currently has three notes payable cutstanding. The first was entered into in 2009 with
the Solid Waste Management Program for purchase of equipment to initiate and establish a new
curbside recycling program in the amount not tc exceed $175,000. The rate on this loan is 2.5%,

repayment began on June 1, 2010 and matures December 1, 20186,

The second was entered into in 2010 with the Solid Waste Management Program for purchase of
Landfill Dozer in the amount of $200,000. The rate on this lcan is 2.25%, repayment began on

June 1, 2611 and matures December 1, 2017,

The third was entered into in 2010 with the Solid Waste Management Program for purchase of
Landfill Baler in the amount of $255,5619. The rate on this loan is 2.25%, repayment began on

June 1, 2011 and matures December 1, 2020.
Notes Payable cutstanding at December 31, 2015 is as follows;

Interest Outstanding

Purpose Rate Amounts
Solid Waste Management-2008-402 2.50% § 8.252
Solid Waste Management-2010-402 2.25% 60.374
Solid Waste Management-2010-203 2.25% 134,899

5 203.525
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Business-Type Activities
December 31 Principal Interest

2016 3 63,885 § 4,237
2017 56,894 2,823
2018 26,956 1,711
2019 27 577 1,1C0
2020 28,200 477
Total $ 203525 % 10,348

~
Revenue Bonds

On May 15, 2013, the City entered into a $1,532,000 loan with the South Dakota Conservancy
District of State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) funds for construction of a new water tower. The
loan is for 2.25% for twenty (20) years with repayment to start on April 1, 2014. The City
completed total drawdowns of $1,294,687. Repayment of the bonds began in 2014.

On June 28, 2013, the City entered into a loan with the South Dakota Conservancy District for
$1,639,000 of State Revolving Fund Loan {SRF) for improvements at the solid waste landfill
facifity. The loan is for 3.0% for twenty (20} years with repayment to start in May of 2015. The full
amount of the bond was drawn down in 2014 with repayment of the bonds beginning May 15,
2015.

During 2014, the City issued a new TIF Incremental Revenue Bond in the amount of $1,732,000
for the development of Tax Incremental District Number Six — Bliss Pointe Development. The
bonds have an interest rate of 3.5%. All tax increment payments received will be used to pay
down the debt as it becomes available to the City.

A detail of revenue bonds cutstanding follows:

Governmental Activities:

TIF Incremental Revenue Bonds 3.50% 5 1,732,000
. $ 1,732,000
Business-Type Activities:

Electric Revenue Bond, Series 2000 A & B 2.0%-6.25% $ 6,260,000
Wastewater Sy stem Revenue Bond, Series 2003 (SRF) 3.50% 143,460
Wastewater Sy stem Revenue Bond, Series 2008 (SRF) 3.25% 3,354,104
Wastewater Sy stem Revenue Bond, Series 2009 (SRF) 2.50% 200,339
Wastewater Sy stem Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2013 (SRF) 5%-2.453% 2,115,000
Joint Powers Revenue Bond 2013 (SRF) 3.00% 1,593,581
Water Utility Bond, Series 2002 (SRF) 3.50% 769,270
Water Utility Bond, Series 2006 (SRF) 2.50% 2,436,719
Water Utility Bond, Series 2013 (SRF) 2.25% 1,202,819
Total Business-Ty pe Activities 5 18,075,352
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Government Enterprise
December 31: Principal Interest Principat Interest
2016 5 - & 680,620 § 834119 § 624,965
2017 37,124 60,296 880,254 655,337
2018 85,007 58,583 1,012,896 626,018
2019 168,724 54,882 1,041,225 594,578
2020 234,038 48,410 1,070,008 561,678
2021-2025 1,207,107 96,212 5,694 507 2,250,563
2026-2030 - - 4,439,024 1,264,001
2031-2035 - - 2,578,219 535,706
2038 - - 425,000 26,563
Total $ 1,732,000 §_ 375003 $ 18075352 $ 7,169,410

Capital Lease

The following are the City's three outstanding capital leases:

An agreement with The First National Bank in Sioux Falls (Lessor/Trustee} for the financing to
construct a new city hall building. The Declaration of Trust Agreement, the Lease-Purchase
Agreement and Ground Lease Agreement between the City and The First National Bank along
with the issuance of $4,475,000 of Certificates of Participation were completed in September
2007. These agreements are evidence of the Bank’s ownership interest in the lease-purchase
assets with the City of Vermillion. In addition to the Certificate of Participation proceeds available
for the bullding construction, the City contributed $1,140,C00 of sales tax funds for completion of
the building project. The bid was awarded and construction began on the new city hall building in
October 2007 and completed in March 2009. The interest rate on the Certificates of Participation
varies from 3.80% to 4.40% and the Jease payment terms matich the terms of the certificates with
final payment December 15, 2026. Sales tax funds have been pledged to make the lease
payments over the term of the lease.

An agreement with Kinetic Leasing for the financing of a 2012 Caterpillar Motorgrader at the
landfill. A down payment of $12,737 was made in 2012 and an agreement for $253,282 to be
paid back with an interest rate of 3.25% and maturing in 2019. This lease is paid from the Joint
Powers Landfill-Recycling Fund. The equipment is recorded at $266,019 less accumulated
depreciation at year end of $167,592.

On December 2, 2015 the City issued $2,695,000 of crossover refunding certificates of
participation in lease-purchase series 2015 in a crossover advance refunding of the certificates of
particigation in lease-purchase series 2007. The 2015 certificates have an average interest rate
of 2.35% and the 2007 certificates being refunded have an average interest rate of 4.23%. The
net proceeds of the issuance were used to purchase U.S. government securities and were
deposited in an escrow account with First National Trust and Investment Management Services.
As of December 31, 2015 the amount in the escrow was $2,634,462. This amount will be used to
refund the remaining $2,565,000 of the 2007 certificates on December 15, 2017. The assets
deposited with the escrow agent are shown as a restricted asset in the City Hall Bonds debt
service fund. As a result of this refunding, the City will reduce its debt service payments over the
next eleven years by $127,122, and obtain an economic gain of $111,073.
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A detail of capital leases cutstanding follows:

Interest Qutstanding
Purpose Rate Amounts
City Hall » First National Bank 3.8%4.40% $ 3,710,000
Joint Powers - Kinetic Leasing 3.25% 166,602

$ 5,876,602

The foliowing is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with
the net present value of the minimum leases payments as of December 31, 2015.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
‘Year Ending December 31 Principal Interest Principa! Interest Total

20186 8 220,000 % 185127 § - 0% - § 405,127
2017 2,795,000 178,890 22404 5,415 3,001,708
2018 280,000 58,870 23,132 4,686 366,688
2019 280,000 54,810 121,066 3,935 4592 811
2020 285,000 50,330 - - 335,330
2021-2025 1,525,000 160,328 - - 1,685,328
2026 325,000 9,100 - - 334,100
Minimesm Lease Payments 6,588,093
Less:

Amount Representing Interest (711,491)
Present Value

of Minlmum Lease Payments 3 5,876,602

Closure/Postclosure Liabijlity

State and federal laws and regulations require the City of Vermillion to place a final cover on its
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitering
functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will
be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City of Vermillion
reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each
period based upon landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The conversion balefill
operations extended the usefullife of the landfill due to the higher compaction and less cover.

The landfill permit was amended in 2013 to expand the permitted area as well as increase the
final elevation and increase the depth of future cells. The permit amendment was approved by
the SI Department of Environment and Natural Resources will increase the estimated capacity
and extend the landfill life.

The $296,111 reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability at December 31, 2015,

represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 18.5 percent of the
estimated capacity of the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure
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and postclosure care of $1,607,638 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts
are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2615. The City
expects to close the landfill in the year 2076. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes
in technology, or changes in regulation. The City reports the closure and postclosure care funds
as restricted assets on the balance sheet. The City expects that future inflation costs will be paid
from interest earnings on theses annual contributions. However, if interest earning are
inadequate or additicnal postciosure care requirements are determined (due to changes in
technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need to be covered
by charges to future tandfill users or from future tax revenues.

Changes in Long-Term Liatilities are as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:

Revenue Bonds Payable $ 1,732,000 5 - [:3 - $ 1,732,000 % -

Capital Leases 3,230,785 2,695,000 215,785 5,710,000 220,000

Compensated Absences 442 389 462,542 442 389 462,542 192,232
Govearnmental Activities

Long-Term Liabilities $ 5,405,174 $ 3,157,542 k] 658,174 $ 7,904 542 $ 412,232
Business-Type Activities:

Revenue Bonds Payable $ 19,000,452 3 - $ 925100 $ 18,075,352 3 834,119

Notes Payable 328,738 - 125,213 203,525 63,888

Capital Leases 188,301 - 21,699 166,602 -

Closure/Postclosure Liability 283,002 16,108 - 296,111 -

Conmpensated Absences 380,834 385,232 390,634 395,232 164,258
Business-Type Aclivities

Leng-Term Liabilities $ 20,188 127 & 411,341 $ 1,462,648 $ 15,136,822 $1,062,265

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generalty liquidated by the general
fund, the revenue bonds will be repaid by the tax incremental property taxes, the city hall capital
rease will be paid out of the sales tax fund and the copier lease from the general fund.

Note 6 — Leases

The City has the following operating leases:

Barstow Park Lease — leased from the public school for twenty years, the land for use as a city
park for $20. The lease will expire on February 23, 2029.

The liquor store building is leased with the current lease expiring in December 2019. The
foliowing is the amount of current lease payments:
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Year Amount

2018 $ 11,250
2017 11,250
2018 11,250
2019 11,250

The Bluff's golf course entered into a lease with Yamaha Golf & Utility to lease 40 golf carts and 2
beverage carts for & years beginning February 1, 2014 and ending 2018. The following is the
amount of the current lease payments:

Year Amount

2016 $ 23,191
2017 23,191
2018 23,180

Note 7 — Conduit Debt

In previcus years, the municipality has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to
certain private-sector entities for the acquisition and/or construction of facilites deemed to be in
the public interest. These bonds are secured by the property being financed and are payable
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds
ownership of the acquired faciltties is retained by the private-sector entity served by the bond
issuance. Neither the municipality, the State of South Dakota, nor any other political subdivision
of the state, is obligated in any manner for the repayment of their conduit debt issues.
Accordingly, the bond is not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As
of December 31, 2013, there was cone series of conduit bonds outstanding, with an aggregate
unpald principal amount of $220,000.

Note 8 — Deficit Fund Equity

As of December 31, 2015, the following funds had deficit fund equity in the amount of:

Cebt Senice Funds:
TiF District No. 6 Bonds 3 91,207
Special Assessment Bonds 156,189
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The deficit in TIF District No. 8 bond fund will continue until TIF revenues are sufficient to cover
the deficit. The second penny sales tax fund will advance the funds needed and will be repaid
with excess future TIF revenues. The deficit in Special Assessment Bond Fund will be
replenished with the sale of Special Assessment Bonds in 2018,

Note 9 — Transfers

The following is a summary of transfers between funds:

Governmental Fund Types Business-Fund Type
Nonmajor Total
Governmental Internal Transfers

General Funds Electric Service Qut
General $ - 3 IMos57 % - 3 6,000 % 320,057
Sales Tax - 806,845 - 806,845
Electric 884 950 - - - B84 950
Water 29,283 - 9,000 - 38 583
Wastewater 28,679 - - - 28,679
Liquor 194,200 - - - 14200

Nonmajor -

Govermental Funds 18,131 409,599 - - 427730
Total Transfers In § 1,155,543 3 1530501 §& 9000 5§ 6,000 3 2,701,044

Transfers are used to:

Move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them.

To use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Note 10 — Risk Management
The municipality is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, ¢damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During

the period ended December 31, 2015, the municipality managed its risks as follows:

Employee Health Insurance;

The municipality purchases health insurance for its employees from a commercial carrier. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three
years.

Liability Insurance and Property Insurance:

The municipality has been unable to obtain liabllity coverage for torts; theft of or damage to
property; and errors and omission of public officials at a cost it considered to be economically
justifiable.  The municipality joined the South Dakota Public Assurance Alliance {SDPAA), a
public entity risk pool currently operating as a commen risk management and insurance program
for South Dakota local government entities. The objective of the SDPAA is to administer and
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provide risk management services and risk sharing facilities to the members and to defend and
protect the members against liability, to advise members on loss contro! guidelines and
procedures, and provide them with risk management services, loss control and risk reduction
information and to obtain lower costs for that coverage. The Municipality's responsibility is to
promptly report to and cooperate with the SDPAA to resolve any incident which could result in a
claim being made by or against the Municipality. The Municipality pays an annual premium to the
pool to provide generai liability, preperty, inland marine, autorobile liability, official’s liability, law
enforcement liability, beiler and liquor liability coverage. The agreement with the Scuth Dakota
Public Assurance Alliance provides that the above coverages will be provided to a $1,000,000
limit. Member's premiums are used by the pool for payment of claims and te pay for reinsurance
for claims in excess of $250,0C0 for property coverage and $500,000 for liability coverage to the
upper limit. The municipality carries $5,000 deductible for the officials liability coverage; $3,000
deductible for law enforcement liability coverage; zero deductibie for general lability; $1,000
deductible for buildings, contents, miscellaneous property and EDP hardware; automobile liability
with $100 deductible for comprehensive and $500 fer collision and liquor liability coverage.

A portion of the member premiums are also allocated to a cumulative reserve fund. The
Municipality would be eligible to receive a refund for a percentage of the amount allocated to the
cumulative reserve fund on the following basis:

End of Municipality's First Full Year 50%
End of Municipality's Second Full Year 60%
End of Municipality's Third Full Year 70%
End of Municipality’s Fourth Full Year 80%
End of Municipality’s Fifth Full Year 90%
End of Municipality's Six Full Year and Thereafter 100%

As of December 31, 2015, the Municipality has vested balance in the cumulative reserve fund of
$158,080.

The municipality does not carry additicnal insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have never exceeded the liability coverage.

Workmen's Compensation:

The municipality has been unable to obtain workmen’s compensation caverage at a cost it
considered to be economically justifiable. The Municipality joined the South Dakota Municipal
League Worker Compensation Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common
risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local government entities. The
objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf ¢f the member
organizations, a pregram of worker's compensation coverage, to obtain lower costs for that
coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program.  The Municipality's
responsibility is to initiate and maintain a safety program to give its employess safe and sanitary
werking conditions and to promptly report to and ccoperate with the Fund tc resclve any worker's
compensation claims.  The Municipality pays an annua! premium, to provide worker's
compensation coverage for its employees, under a self-funded program and the premiums are
accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the Fund members. Coverage
limits are set by state statue. The poo! pays the first $650,000 of any claim per individual. The
pool has reinsurance which covers up to statutory fimits in addition to a separate combined
employer liabifity limit of $2,000,000 per incident.
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The municipality does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have never exceeded the liability coverage.

Unemployment Insurance:

The municipality has elected to be self-insured and retain all risk for liabilities resulting from
claims for unemployment benefits. The municipality has equity in the unempleyed insurance fund
in the amount of $12,526 for the payment of future unemployment benefits. During the current
year ended December 31, 2015 the City paid no unemployment benefit. No material claims are
anticipated in the next fiscal year.

The City does not have any changes in employment practices or elimination of any positions
currently held,

Note 11 — Pension Plan

Plan information:

All employees, working more than 20 hours per week during the year, participate in the South
Dakota Retirement System {SDRS), a cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by SDRS to provide retirement benefits for employees of the State of South
Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability, and survivor
benefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after three years of credited service.
Authority for establishing, administering and amending plan provisions are found in SDCL 3-12.
The SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained at
http://www sdrs.sd.gov/publications/ or by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SD 57801-
1098 cr by calling (605) 773-3731.

Benefits Provided:

SDRS has three different classes of employees, Class A, Class B public safety and Class B
judicial. Class A retirement benefits are determined as 1.7 percent prior to 2008 and 1.55 percent
thereafter of the employee’s final 3-year average compensation times the employee's years of
service. Employees with 3 years of service are eligible to retire at age 55. Class B public safety
benefits are determined as 2.4 percent for service prior to 2008 and 2.0 perceni thereafter of
employee final average compensation. Class B judicial benefits are determined as 3.733 parcant
for service prior to 2008 and 3.333 percent thereafter of employee final average compensation.
All Class B employees with 3 years of service are eligible to retire at age 45. Employees are
eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service. Three years of
service is required for nonservice-related disability eligibility. Disability benefits are determined in
the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an actuarial
reduction. Death cenefits are a percent of the employee’s final average salary.

The annual increase in the amount of the SDRS benefits payable on each July 1st is indexed to
the consumer price index (CPI) based on SDRS funded status:

If the SDRS market value funded ratio is 100% or more — 3.1% COLA
If the SDRS market value funded ratio is 80.0% to ©9.8%, index with the CPI
80.0% to 99.8% funded — 2.1% minimum and 2.8% maximum COLA
80.0% to 90.0% funded — 2.1% minimum and 2.4% maximum COLA
If the SDRS market value funded ratio is less than 80% -- 2.1% COLA
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All benefits except those depending on the Member's Accumulated Contributions are annuatly
increased by the Cost-of-Living Adjustment.

Contributions:

Per SDCL 3-12, contribution requirements of the active empldyees and the participating
empioyers are established and may be amended by the SDRS Board. Coverad employees are
required by state statute to contribute the following percentages of their salary to the plan; Class
A Members, 6.0% of salary; Class B Judicial Members, 9.0% of salary; and Class B Public Safety
Members, 8.0% of salary. State statute also requires the employer to contribute an amount egual
to the employee's contribution. State statute also requires the employer to make an additional
contribution in the amount of 6.2 percent for any compensation exceeding the maximum taxable
amount for social security for genera! employees only. The Municipality’s share of contributions
to the SDRS for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 were $335,480,
$326,188, and 310,158, respectively, egual to the required contributions each year.

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources to Pensions:

At June 30, 2015, SDRS is 104.1% funded and accordingly has a net pension asset. The
proportionate shares of the components of the net pension asset of South Dakota Retirement
System, for the Municipality as of this measurement period and reported by the Municipality as of
June 30, 2015 are as follows;

Proportionate share of net position restricted for

pension benefits $ 32,521,542
Less proportionate share of total pension liability 31,241,602
Proportionate share of net pension asset $ 1,275.940

At December 31, 2015, the Municipality reported an asset of $1,279,940 for its proportionate
share of the net pensjon asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2015 and
the total pensicn asset used to calculate the net pension asset was based on a projection of the
Municipality's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of al!
participating entities. At June 30, 2015, the Municipality's proportion was .30178110%, which is
an increase of .000864% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Municipality recognized pension expense of
$194,624. At December 31, 2015 the Municipality reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Difference betwesen expected and actual
experience.

Changes in assumption.

Net Difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments.

Changes in proportion and difference
between Municipality contributions and
proporticnate share of contributions.

Munlcipality contributions subsequent to
the measurement date.

TOTAL

Deferred Qutflows
Of Resources

Deferred Inflows
Of Resources

$ 262,074 $ .
1,014,523 -
781,894 1,888,648

- 2,795

182,749 B

$ 2241240 $ 1,891,443

$182,745 reported as deferred outflow of resources related to pensions resulting from
Municipality contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2016. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense {revanue) as follows:

Year Ended
December 31:
2016 $ 59,651
2017 59,851
2018 (183,862)
2019 211,008
TOTAL $ 167,048
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Actuarial Assumptions:
The total pension liability (asset) in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuaria! assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement;

Inflation 3.25 percent
Salary Increases 5.83 percent at entry to 3.87 percent after 30 years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.25 percent through 2016 and 7.50 percent thereafter, net of

pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table for males and females, as
appropriate.

The actuarial assumptions usad in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2011. The moertality
assumptions were revised based on an extension of the experience study including mortality
experience through June 30, 2013.

nvestment partfolic management is the statutory responsibility of the South Dakota Investment
Council (SDIC), which may utilize the services of external money managers for management of a
portion of the portfolio. SDIC is governed by the Prudent Man Rule (i.e., the council should use
the same degree of care as a prudent man). Current SDIC investment policies dictate limits on
the percentage of assets invested in various types of vehicles (equities, fixed income securities,
real estate, cash, private equity, etc.). The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to praduce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of retum by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015
(see the discussion of the pension plan’s investment policy) are summarized in the following table
using geometric means:

Target l.eng-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global Equity 61.0% 4.5%
Fixed Income 27.0% 1.8%
Real Estate 10.0% 52%
Cash 2.0% 0.8%
Total 100%

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability (asset) was 7.25 percent through
2017 and 7.50% thereafter. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
matching employer contributions from will be made at rates equal to the member rate. Based on
these assumptions, the pensicn plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
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rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability (asset).

Sensitivity of liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate:

The following presents the Municipality's proportionate share of net pension liability (asset)
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent through 2017 and 7.50 percent thereafter, as
well as what the Municipality’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.25/6.50%) or 1-
percentage point higher {8.25/8.50%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Municipality's proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) $3,221,594 $(1,279,840) $(4,950,553)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
SDRS financial repert.

Note 12 - Commitments

The Vermilion Chamber of Commerce and Development Company in 2009 conducted a capital
campaign titled Vermillion NOW! 1 with a goal to raise $1.5 million over five years for economic
development in the community. The City Council pledged to match private sector commitments at
the rate of fifty cents per dollar raised until August 1, 2009 with a maximum contribution over a
five-year period of $450,000. Vermillion NOW! 1 exceedad its goa! with commitments of over
$1.6 million. During 2009, the city paid $20,800 of this pledge, $30,000 in 2010, $38,713 in 2011,
$65,947 in 2012, $166,710 in 2013, $30,000 in 2014,

The Vermilion Chamber of Commerce and Development Company in 2013 started a second
capital campaign titled Vermillion NOW! 2 with a goal to raise $1.6 million over five years for
eccnomic development in the community. The City Council in November 2013 pledged $500,000
to the capital campaign with the first payment of $50,000 made in 2015,

Note 13 — Contingency

The City receives significant financial assistance from the U S. government. Entitlement to the
resources is generally based on compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of the resources for eligible
purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors.
Any disallowances as a result of these audits become a liability of the fund that receives the
grant. As of December 31, 2015, the City estimates that no material liabilities wilt resulf from
such audits,
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On March 10, 2016 the City issued $3,005,000 of general obligation bonds, series 2016 to
finance the Prentis Park swimming pool improvements. The bonds have a average interest rate of
2.88% with final payment date of December 1, 2035.

In March, 2016 the City applied to the SD Board of Water and Natural Resources for grant and
loan funding to replace the Prentis Street sanitary sewer lift station. The lift station is in need of
replacement due to growth in the service area and the equipment is reaching the end of its usefu!
fife. In June it was announced that the City was awarded a $515,000 Community Development
Block Grant for the lift station replacement project and the Board of Water and Natural Resources
approved a loan of $812,000 at 3% for twenty years. With funding in place the project will move
farward for bidding later in 2016 for construction in 2017,

Note 15 — Prior Period Adjustments

The Municipality implemented GASR Statement No. 88 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensicns — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71 Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date ~ An Amendment of
(GASB Staterment No. 68. As a result, beginning net position has been restated to reflect the
refated net pensicn asset and deferred cutflows of resources as of December 31, 2014 as
follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Net Position December 31, 2014, as Previously Reported $ 34,378,706 $ 37,800,054
Net Pension Asset as Decamber 31, 2014 1,318,354 849,628
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 1,082,707 895,773
Deferrad Inflows of Resources {1,528,876) (984,012)
Net Position December 31, 2014, as Restated $ 35252 891 3 38,361,443
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(unaudited)

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Statements
No. 25, No. 27 and No. 34, the following information is a required part
of the general purpose financial statements.



Revenua:
Taxas;
General Properly Taxes
General Sales & Use Taxes
Penaities & Interast on
Delinguent Taxes
Licenses & Parmits:
Intergevernmantal Revenua:
Charges for Goads & Services:
Finas & Forfsits:
Special Assessments
Investment Eamings
Rentals
Contributions & Donations
from Private Sources
Other
Total Revenue
Expenditurgs:
Current:
General Govemmanl:
Executive
Finencial Administration
Other
Total General Government
Pubfic Safety:
Police
Fire
Other Protection
Tetal Publle Safety
Public Works:
Highways & Streats
Sanitation
Airport
Total Public Works
Health and Weare:
Health
Ambulance
Total Hagith and Yelfare
Culture-Recreation:
Recreation
Parks
Libraries
Armory
Total Culture-Recreation
Conservation and Development:
Total Current Expenditures
" Capital Outlay:
Exacutive
Financial Administration
Health
Parks
Libraries
Totat Capital Oullay
Total Expenditures
Debl Service
Principal
Cther Financing Sourcas (Usaes):
Operating Translers In
Operating Transfars Out

Total Othar Financing Sources {Uses)

Nat Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balanca -beginning
Change in laveniory
Fund Bailance - ending

CITY OF VERMILLION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

EXHIBIT 8

Varlance
Amended Budgst
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Favorable
Qriginal Finai {Budgetary Basis) {Unfavorable)
$ 2127100 & 2,164,900 3 2177817 § 12,817
1,674,000 1,648,000 1,792,580 144,980
4,000 10,000 13,424 3,424
248,250 300,200 309,643 9,443
353,750 389,870 025,836 435,966
538,450 548,600 535,636 (10,984)
38,150 38,850 43,707 5,087
100 150 185 5
43,500 12,000 9,786 {2,214)
15,100 23,575 23,708 134
5,000 18,000 18,961 o651
51,600 110,275 108,200 (1,075}
5,064,900 5,283,220 5,961,854 698,834
562,785 583,113 507,144 65,968
176,778 181,777 176,414 5,363
586,793 565,975 512,158 53,777
1,306,357 1,310,885 1,195,766 115,108
1,743,947 1,740,508 1,638,483 102,025
245218 248,705 239172 10,533
3 300 3,400 2210 1,190
1,896,465 1,993,813 1,878,865 113,748
819,548 822,480 781,451 41,029
111,528 111,135 107,430 3,708
117,938 02,238 66,064 26,172
1,048,014 1,025,851 954,845 70,906
201,997 201,719 183,089 8,630
300,448 341,786 328,792 12,884
511,446 543,505 521,881 21,624
278,676 289,845 252,710 37,135
317,002 316,726 291,762 24,964
490,383 480,789 481,106 (10,317)
60,533 55,887 44 598 11,299
1,146,474 1,143 257 1,080,176 83,081
74,000 103,455 68,163 35,302
6 083 756 6,120,546 5,700,776 419,770
750 750 580 200
300 300 - 300
2,500 2,800 1,200 1,300
- 5,000 3,200 1,800
96,000 113 850 93,980 19,660
99 550 122,200 98,840 23,280
5.183,306 6,242,748 5,799,716 443,030
1,000 1,000 785 215
1,156,814 1,155,854 1,155,643 311
{277,305) {336,648) {320,057} 46,591
878,809 815,206 835,486 17,117
{229,797} {161,320) 996,839 1,158,158
3,004,334 3,084,334 3,004,334 -
- - {13,580} 13,580
3 2,854,537 § 2933014 $ 4,077,583 § 1,171,738
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REVENUES
Taxes:
General sales & use taxes
tntergovernmental Revenue
State Grant
Miscellaneous revenue:
Interest earnad
Tetal revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General Government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture-recreation
Conservaticn & development
Total current exp

Capital Cutlay:
General Government
Public safety
Pubfic works
Health and welfare
Culture-recreation
Total capitat outlay

Total expenditures

CITY OF VERMILLION
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SALES TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

EXHIBIT @

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out

Total other financing scurces (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund kalance - ending

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Favorabie

Criginal Final (Budgetary Basis) {Unfavorable)
3 1,674,00C % 1,648,000 $ 1,791,080 % 143,080
34,500 4,000 - (4,000)
9,000 8,650 8,661 11
1,717,500 1,66¢,650 1,799,741 139,091
- 12,000 7,637 4,363

61,500 51,500 9,921 41,579
62,700 62,475 28,742 33,733
42,000 37,000 2,000 35,000
43,465 202,223 5,918 196,305

. 76,000 100,000 22,332 77 BE8
285,665 465,168 76,550 385,648
- - 35,379 (35,379)
- - 14,925 {14,925)
- - 34,506 (34,508)
- - 196,167 (196,187}
- - 280,977 (280,977}

285 665 465,198 357,527 107,671
(528,028) (913,956) (806,845) 107,111
(528,026) (813,956) (806,845) 107,111
903,800 281,496 635,369 353,873
2,551,614 2,551,614 2,551,614 -
5 3,455,423 § 2,833,110 % 3,186,983 § 353 873
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Exhibit 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-BUDGETARY
REPORTING
DECEMBER 31, 2015

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1.

At the first regular board meeting in September of each year or within ten days
thereafter, the governing board introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for
the ensuing fiscal year.

After adoption by the governing board, the operating budget of the general fund,
the special revenue funds, and the capital projects fund is legally binding and
actual expenditures for each purpose cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except
as indicated in number 4,

A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line
item may not exceed 5 percent of the total municipal budget and may be
transferred by resolution of the governing board to any other budget category that
is deemed insufficient during the year.

If'it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted,
state statute allows the adoption of supplemental budget. In September and
December 2015, the City Council adopted a supplemental appropriation ordinance
that included reductions in the previously budgeted amounts as a result of changes
since the budget was adopted in September 2014, The following supplemental
budgets were adopted by the governing board during the year.
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Exhibit 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-BUDGETARY
REPORTING
DECEMBER 31, 2015

General Fund

Expanditures:
General Government $ 4,508
Public Safety (2,852)
Public Works (23,183)
Heaith and Welfare 32,059
Culture-Recreation (3,.217)
Conservation & Development 29,458
Capital Cutlay 22,850
Transfers Qut 59,343

Special Revenue Fund
Sales Tax Fund

Expenditures:
General Government 5 12,000
Public Safety (10,000}
Public Works (225)
Health and \Walfare {5,000)
Culture-Recreation 158,758
Conservation & Development 24,000
Transfers Out 385,930

Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. The procedure used by the city is
to adopt a supplemental appropriation ordinance during the following year by the
council to provide additional funds for certain purchase commitments outstanding
at year-end. Any transfers of budgeted amounts between departments of the
General fund, transfers between other funds, and any revision that alter the total
expenditure of any department or fund must be approved by the City Council.
This is the legal level of control.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for the General, Capital Projects and Special Revenue funds.

Formal budgetary integration is not employed for Debt Service funds because
effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through general obligation
bond indenture provisions.



Exhibit 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-BUDGETARY
REPORTING
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Budgets for the General, Capital Projects and Special Revenue funds are adopted
on a basis consistent with U.8. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Encumbrances-Encumbrances carry over from one year to the next unless
canceled by the City. These encumbrances are charged against the new year’s
budget until a supplemental appropriation ordinance is adopted as described in #5
above.

GAAP/Budgetary Accounting Basis Differences-The financial statements
prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP present capital outlay expenditure
information in a separate category of expenditures. Under the budgetary basis of
accounting, capital outlay expenditures are reported within the function to which
they are related.
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Exhibit 11
CITY OF VERMILLION
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION ASSET
South Dakota Retirement System

Last 10 Fiscal Years *
{Dollar amounts in thousands)

2014 2015
Municipality's proportion of the net pensicn
liability (asset) 0.3009167% 0.3017811%
Municipality's proeportionate share of net
pension liability {asset) $ (2,168) $ (1,280)
Municipality's covered-employee payroil $ 4,915 3 5,140
Municipality's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covared-employee payroll ~44.11% -24.90%
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability (asset) 107.3% 104.1%

Notes to the Schedule:
* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of the collective

net pension fiability which is June 30.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show informaticn for 10 years, However, until a fuil
10 year trend is compiled, the City will present information for thosa years for which information is available.
Data reported is measured as of the calendar year end.
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Contractuaily required contribution

Contributicns in relation o the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Municipality's coverad-employee payrall

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employae payroll

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation te the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency {excess)
Municipality's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

CITY GF VERMILLION
SCHEDULE OF THE CIiTY CONTRIBUTIONS
South Dakota Retirement System

Last 10 Fiscal Years

(Dollar amounts in thousands}

Exhibit 12

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
§ 330577 % 315732 % 304494 § 281256 § 201258
(330,577} (315,732} {304,494) (291,258) (291,258)
5 - 3 - $ - 5 - 5 -
§ 5138,527  §4,915340  $4741430 $ 4,562,530 § 4479012
6.43% 5.42% B.42% B.36% 6.50%
2010 2009 2008 2007 2008
$ 282934 § 288581 & 257318 5 243144 § 242,723
(282.934) (268.581) (257,318) (243,144) (242,723}
§ - ) - 5 - 3 - § -
$ 4426859 34,192,666 §4028402 53811514 § 3830813
6.30% 6.41% 6.39% 5.38% 6.34%
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CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from special tax levies
and other earmarked revenue sources. These funds are utilized to finance allowable functlons whrch may be for either
capital outlays or current expenditures, or both. -

g

The following funds included in this fund type and their purposes are as follows:
'Major Fund -

Sales Tax Fund Any revenue rooerved in.excess’ of the amount recewed if the rate of tax is one percent (1%) may
be used only for capital improvement, land acquisition, the funding of public ambulances and medical emergency response
‘vehicles, nonprofit hospitals with fifty or. fewer licensed beds, and other public care facilities or nonprofit health care

. facilities with fifty or fewer licensed beds, the transfer to the special 911 fund authorized by SDCL § 34-45-12, the

purchasing of fire fighting vehicles and equipment, debt retirement, major building repair projects, capital pro;ect planning,
feasibility studies, and the mmor rehablhtatlon major 1ehab111tatron, or reconstructlon of streets. (Reported in Exhibit 3 and
Exhibit 4) N

Non-Major Funds:

i

'Liquor, Lodging and Dining Tax - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the additional
one percent (1%) city sales tax on lodgings, alcoholic beverages, prepared food and admissions. All révenues received from
* the collection of the tax are used only for the purpose of land acquisition, architectural fees, construction costs, payment for
civic center, auditorium or athletic facility buildings, including the maintenance, stafﬁng and operation of such facilities and
the promotlon and advertrslng of the city, its facilities, attraetlons and act1v1tres

9]1 Fund — Thrs special revenue fund is used to account for the revetiues and expendrtures for the operation of the
Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) as required by the South Dakota 911 Coordination Board, Clay County and the City
of Vermillion created the Clay Area Emergency Services Communications Center through an Intergovernmental Agreement
in 1994 to consolidate public safety communications. Clay County and the City of Vermillion share the costs of operating
the emergency communications center as outlined in the Intergovernmontal Agreement,

Stormwater Fee Fund - This fund was estabhshed during the 1993 budget process as a fundmg source for new
Stormwater construction and maintenance of the existing Stormwater system.- The fee is charged to every par cel of property
.based upon the area and the usé. The fee is collected by the county treagurer with the property taxes and rermtted to the crty
: with the tax receipts. . . ‘

: Parks Camtal Fund - This fund is used to account for contrrbutrons received for oaprtal improvements to be made
in the Crty s parks,

lerary Fund - Thls fund is used to account for fines, grﬂ monéys and interest received by the library and is
expended at the direction- of the Lrbrary Board. : :

_ Business Improvement District - This district includes all lodgrncr establishments located within the city limits
whereby a $2 per night fee is charged for rented rooms. The proceeds are for the purpose of funding the enhancement,
expansion, marketing and promotion of visiter facilities, events, attractions and activities benefiting the city and its hotels and
hotels located withih the district. . '

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - Capital Pr ojects Funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds

The following funds mciuded in this fund type and therr purposes are as follows.
Non-Major Funds: |

) ‘Special Assessment Project Funds - This fund is useﬂ to account for receipt and disbursements of monies used for
the construction of capital improvements, which are to be assessed to property owners. The projects are financed by the sale
of special assessment bonds reported as a transfer in from the debt service fund and payments received from the property




owners, The begmmng deficit fund balance is for projects completed in 2014 that were assessed and-a bond sold to reunburse
in 2015.

7 _Bliss Pointe — This fund is used to account for the Tax Increment Bond Proceeds, transfer in and receipts and.
disbursements of monies for the city share of infrastructure improvements and grants to the VCDC for the first phase of the
- Bliss Pointe residential development. The Tax Incremental Bond was authorized during 2013 with the final closing in May
of 2014 with the bond proceeds to be granted to the VCDC for development expenses along with Stormwater Funds for storm
~ drainage costs, Second Penny Sales tax for subbase and ovemzed water main costs from the Water Fund. Flnal grant
payment was made in 2015 : s :

" Prentis Park Improvements — This fund is used to account for the donations, transfers in and bond proceeds used
for imptovements planned for Prentis Park. The 1mprovements planned are swimming pool basketball courts, sidewalks and
parking lot. Bids for the swimming pool portion of the project were approved in February 2015 and & general obligation
bond for §3, 100 000 was authorized for the projects, ,

. Bike Path Fund - This fund is used to account for the recexpts and dlsbursements of monies used for the
construct}on of bike paths with the use of the federal matching funds :

_ Airport Fund - This fund is used to aceéunt for receipts and d1sbu.rsements of monies from federal,’ state and local
“matching for nnprovements at Harold Davidson Field. : .

_ Mill & Overlay West Main Strreet — This, fund is used 1o account for the rmll and overlay of West Main Street from
High Street to Stanford Street and the Main Street traffic signals project. The mill and overlay was eompleted in 2015 ‘and
engmeermg demgn began on the traffic 51gna1s project was started. ‘

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS Debt Servwe Funds account fo1 the aCc:umulanon of resources and payrnent of general Iong “term . '
obhgatmn bond principal and inter est from governmental resourees : ‘

.

The followmg furids mcluded in thIS fund type and their purposes are as fo%lows
-Non-MaJor Funds: |

o Specml Assessment Bonds - ThlS fund accounts for the accumulatlon of mopies for payment of special assessment -
bonds. The collection of the special assessments levied against the propetties: beneﬁtmg from the improvements from 2001
© through 2014 is recorded in this fund. As the special assessment bonds were purchased by the electric utility the current’
portion of the inter fund-loan is reported as”Due to other funds” and the long term portion is reported as “Advance from other.

funds”. The prmclpal payment for the inter fund loan reduces the liability and the interest is reported as a fund expenditure,

~The transfer out is the 8% fiscal fee for engineer mg services transferred to the general fund, Bonds in the form of Interfund B
Ioa.n were 1ssued in 2015, : S . - . ‘

_ , Clty Hall Bonds' -'This fund accounts for the reserve and the accurnulation of monies for payment of the principal -
and interest on the certificates of participation in a lease-purchase agreement issued to build the new city hall. The certificates

of participation were issued September 15, 2007 with the reserve and capitalized interest being recorded in this fund. The city

has pledged sales tax revenues for the prmc:lpal and interest payments through December 15, 2026, Refunding Certificates. of

Participation id a Lease-Purchasé Agreement in the amount of $2,695 ,000 were issued on December 30, 2015 as an advance
crossover refundmg for the current certificates on the call date of December. 15, 2017.

TIF Dlstrlct No. 5 — This fund accounts for the tax increment on TIF District No. 5 that per the TIF plan are
_reimbursed to the Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development Company for prmmpal and interest payment on their
debt 1ssued for nnprovements .

TIF Distriet No. 6 Bonds — This fund accounts for the accumulatlon of monles for payment of the- tax incremental
financing bonds principal and Interest, The tax incremental financing bonds were authorized in 2013 with final closmg in
2014, Bond payments start in 2014,

Prentis Park Improvements - Thls fund accounts for the accumulatlon of monies for payment of the general
obllgatwn bonds issued for improvements to Prentis Park. The bonds were issued in February 2016 with funding sources
from transfer from general fund of malt beverage markup fee and second penny sales tax, If these amounts are not sufficient
the dlfference will be cert1ﬁed to the county for fundmg from property taxes. :
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CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Special Ravenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Liguor Business Spacial
Lodging, Stormwater Parks Improvement Assessment Bliss
Oiping Tax 811 Fea Capital Library Diistrict Total Projecig Pointe
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 50,581 § -8 55,178 § 35400 § 28,170 § 40001 § 209,380 % -8 -
Investments 200,000 - 940,000 50,000 - - 1,180,000 - -
Receivablas (net, where applicable, of
allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounts recaivable - - 5,966 - - 3,356 8,322 - -
Speclal assessment recsivable - - - - - - . - -
interest recaivabla &58 - 2,111 15 - - 2,684 - -
Oue from other govemments 42,157 66,623 £08 - - . 108,388 - -
Dus from other funds - - . - - . N R
Rastrictad assets:
Cash and cash equivatents - - - - - - - - .
Invastments - - - N - - - - . -
[nterest receivable - - - - - . - - -
Total aszets 283,286 66,623 1,003,863 85,465 28170 43 357 1520774 - -
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilltles:
Accounts payable 5,000 10,348 - - . 11,518 28,887 - -
Due to other funds - 58,275 - - - - 58,275 - -
Ravenua collected in advance - - - 2,727 - - 2,727 - .
Advance from other funds - - B - . - . - .
Total fabilities . 5,000 66,623 - 2,727 - 11,8189 85,889 - -
DEFERRELD INFLCOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-sales tax
and interast 10,398 - 211 15 - - 12,524 - -
Unavailable revenus- stormwater fee - - 5,066 - . - 5,966 - -
Unavallable revenue-spacial
assessments and Interast - - - - - - - - _
Total deferrad inflows of resources ' 10.398 N 8,077 15 - . 16,490 - -
FUND BALANCES:
Restricted 277,898 . 995,786 82,723 28170 31,828 1416,41% “ -
Unassigned - - - - - . N . _
Total fund balances 277,898 - 895,786 82,723 28,170 31,838 1,416,416 - -
Total liabilitles and fund balances 3 293,296 § 66,623 § 1,003,863 § 85465 & 28,170 § 43357 % 1,620,774 8 - % -




EXHIBIT A-1

Capital Project Funds continued Debt Service Funds Total
Prantis Specia City TIF District Prentis Nonmajor
Park Bike Mill Assessment Hali TIF District No, 6 Park Govemmental
Improvements Path Airpart Overlay Total Bonds Bands Ng. 5 Bonds Improvements Total Funds
-8 12,648 § § 1499 § 14,147 § - § -3 - § -3 -8 -3 223 527
- . - - - - - - - - - 1,190,000
- . - - - - . . " - - 9,322
- - - - 466,143 - - - - 468,143 466,143
- - - - - 12,327 - - - - 12,327 15,011
- - 28,721 - 28,721 - - - - - v 138,108
- - 83,259 93,259 - 93,258
- - - - - - 4,952 - - 8,000 12,982 12,852
- - - - v 250,000 2,965,478 - 50,000 3,295,478 3,285,478
- - - - - 1,154 193 - - 15 1,362 1,382
- 12,648 28,721 84,758 136,127 728,624 3,000,623 - - 58,015 3,788,282 5.445,183
- 3,063 5,140 04,758 102,061 - - - - - . 129,828
- - 23,581 - 23,581 45,433 - - - - 45,433 125,289
- 9,585 - - 9,585 - - - . - - 12,312
- - - - - 386,601 - - £1,207 - 487 808 487,808
- 12,848 28,721 94,758 136,127 442,034 - - 81,207 - 533,241 755,237
. - - - - - 193 - - 15 208 12,732
. . - . - - - - - - - 5,868
_ _ . - - 448,779 - - - - 448,779 446779
B - - - 448,779 193 - - 15 448,087 465477
- - - - - - 3,000,430 - . 58,000 3,068,430 4,474,845
- z hd - - (159,189) - - {91,207) - (250,386) {250,396)
- - - - - {159,189) 3,000,430 - (91,207} 58,000 2,808,034 4,224,448
- § 12,848 & 28,721 § 94758 5 136,127 § 729624 § 3,000,623 & - § - 5 58,015 § 3788262 3 5,445 183
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REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Generai sales & use
Slormwater lees
Business Improvermnanl Dist Fees
Penalties & mierest
Intergovernmental
Federal grant
State grant
Counly shared revenue
Charges for goods & services
Culture & recreation
Fines & forfaits
Library
Miscelianeous-
Public payments lor impravements
Interest eamed
Caniributions & donations
from privale sources
Speclal assessments
(principal & interest)
Cther
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current
Fuhlic safety
Public works
Cufture-racreation
Conservatlon & development
Capilal cutlay;
Public safety
Public works
Cufture & recreation
Debl service
Principal
Interest & fiscal charges
Tolal expenoitures

Excess (defllciency} of revenues over
(under) expenditures

QOTHER FINANCING
SOURCES{USES)
Transier in
Proceeds rom saie of bonds
Transfer out
Tolal other financing
spUrces{uses)

Net change in fund halsnces

Fund balances - beginring

Fund balances - ending s

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 312015

CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING STATEMENT CF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE S IN FUND BALANCES

Special Revenue Funds

Capilal Project Funds

Liguor Business Special
Ladging. Starmwater Parks Improvement Assessment Bliss
Dining Tax 911 Fee Captal Library Bistricl Total Projects Pointe
- 5 $ L3 8 -8 -
333865 - - . - - 323.9685 - -
- - 207,232 - - 207.232 - -
" b - - - 59,308 59.306 - -
- - 838 - - - 938 - -
36.020 - - - 36,020 -
- 256.057 - - 4,000 260.057 -
. - - 1,934 - 1834 .
- - - - 3,153 . 3,153 - -
- - - - - - - 97,742 -
280 - 4,024 10 20 - 4,324 - -
- - 25,000 71,674 5,143 - 101817 -
- - - - 4,160 41580 - b
334,225 282 077 237,204 73,618 18,478 59,308 1,012,906 97,712 -
- 510,645 - - - - 510.845 - -
- - 35635 - - - 35835 - -
- - - 2,209 11,672 - 13,881 - -
308,131 - - - - 50,410 386 541 - 45,973
- 37 489 - - - : 37,489 - :
306,131 S48.134 35835 2,309 11,872 30,410 954,231 - 45,97:;
28.094 (256.0587) 201 569 71,209 4,804 8,398 58,813 g7 712 (45,973)
- 256.057 - - B - 258,057 408 589 -
- - - - (1,119} {1,119} (17.012) -
- 256.057 - - - (1,119) 254,938 392 587 -
28,094 201 560 71,308 4,804 1377 213,553 493,299 (45,973)
249304 - 794,217 11414 23,368 24,081 1,102,862 {490,299) 45,973
277.858 - 3 985788 3 B2.723 § 28,170 31838 § 1418415 § - -
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Capilal Project Funds continueg

DOebt Service Funds

EXHIBIT A.2

Prentis Special Ciy TIF District Prenlis Total
Park Bike Miji Assessmenl Hali TIF Drsiric No. & Parg Nonmajar
Improve ments Path Atrpor Qvertay Totai Bands Bonds No § Bands lmprovemsanis Total Funas

- - - - 8 5 204 S 4775 - 4,973 4.979

- - - - - - 333985

. - - - - - . - 207 232

) j . . - . - - 59 306

- - - - . - - - KL

- 26,354 - 26254 - - - - - 62.374

- - 1,464 397,278 398 742 - - - - - - 388.742

- - - . . . - - - - - 260,057

. - - - - - - - - . 1.934

- B - - - - - . - - 3.153

- - - 87,712 - B - - - - 7712

- - - - - 700 4098 - - - 4,738 8122

13,220 - - - 13.220 - - - - - - 115,027

B - . . . 47,180 - - 47100 47.140

- - - - - - - - . - . 4,180

13,220 - 27,818 397,278 536.028 47.890 4.094 204 4.775 - 56,967 1,805,901

- . - - - - . - - - 510,645

- - - 53,180 53,180 - - - - - - 88,815

- - - - - - - - - - - 13,881

- - - - 45,973 - - - - 402,514

- - - - . - - - - 37 480

29,282 438 856 468,138 - - - - - - 488,138

340,546 - - - 340,548 - - - - - - 340,548
- - - - - 215,000 - - - 215,000 216,000

- - - - - 10,178 195,766 204 60,620 - 266,768 286,768
340,546 “ 29,2582 492,038 a07.837 13,178 410 768 204 60,620 - 481,768 2.343 896
(327.3268) - {1,464} {94,758) (371,809) 37,712 {408.668) - {55.845) - [424,801) (737.895)
327,326 31,533 1464 b4,758 884 880 - 351,764 - - 58.000 406,764 1,530,501
- - - - - 2,695,000 - - 2,605 000 2,605,000
. . - - (17.012) (4089,599) . . - (400,599) (427.730)
327,326 31,532 1,484 94 758 847 688 (409,559} 3.048,764 - - 58,000 2,695 165 378771
- 31,533 - - 475859 {371,887) 2,640,086 - (35,845) 58,000 2,270,364 3,058,776

- (31,533} - - {475,859) 212 598 360.334 - 35,362) - 547,670 1.1684.673

- - - - (158,189} & 3000430 % - 8 (81.207) 58,000 2,808,034 4.224 444
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CITY OF VERMILLION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2015

Liguor, Lodging, Dining Tax 91

Final
Budgeled

Actual

Varianoe
Favorable Final

(Unfaverable) Budgaled Actual

Vanance
Favorable
{Unfaverable

REVENUES
Taxes:

General sales & use $

Property taxes

Stormwaler fees -

Penalties & interest -
Intergovernmantal :

County shared revenue -
Charges for geods & services

Cullure & recreation -
Fines & forfaits:

Library -
Miscellanecus:

Grants -

Interast eemed 260

Confribulions & donalions

from privata sources -

Other

336,800 %

333,965 §

(2,805) § .3 .

- 272,847 256,057

- 36,020

{18,590}

Total revanue 337 060

334 225

308,667 282,077

{16,590}

EXPENDITURES

Current
Public safaty -
Public works -
Culture-recreation -
Conservation & devalopment 307,550

308,131

- 581,316 548,134

33,181

Total expenditures 307,550

306,131

418 - -
419 581315 548,134

33,181

Excess (deficisncy} of revenuas over

(under) expenditures 28,510

28 094

{1,416) (272 548) {256 087}

16,581

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In -
Cperating Transfers Out -

- 272,848 256,057

(18,581)

Total Othar Financing Sources (Uses) -
Net change in fund balances $

Fund balances - baglnning
Fund balances - ending

28,094

249,804

277,898

- 272,648 256,057
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EXHIBIT A-3

70

Stormwaler Fes Parks Capilal Library Businass Improvement District
Varlance Variance Varlance Varlance
Final Favorable Final Favorable Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budgelad Actual Unfavorable Budgetsd Actual (Unfavorable) Budgslad Actual {Uniavorable} Budgetsd Actual {Unfavorable)
- - 8 - § - - 3 - % - 0§ - % - 0§ -3 - ¥ -
71,500 59,308 (12,194}
208,100 207,232 1,132 - - - . - - R - .
g0 938 138 - - - R . . - .
- - - - - - 4,000 4,000 - . -
- - - 3,000 1,634 {1,066) . - - - - .
- - - . - - 3,100 3,153 53 . -
10,000 25,000 15,000 - - . N N . . N .
4,000 4,034 34 10 10 - 15 20 5 - -
- - - - 71,674 71,674 5,200 5,143 (57} - -
B . - - . - 2,900 4160 1,260 Ll ol
220,900 237.204 16,304 3,010 73618 70,608 15215 16,476 1,261 71,500 58,308 (12,194}
35,200 35,635 {435) - - - - M - - - -
- - - 3010 2,309 701 12,000 11,872 azs - -
- - - - - . - - - B5,000 50,410 {34,550}
35,200 35635 (435) 3,010 2,309 701 12,000 11672 328 E5,000 50,410 {34,590}
185,700 201,569 15868 - 71,308 71,309 3215 4 804 1,489 {13,500} 8,896 {46,754
- - - - - - - - {1.430) (1,119) {311}
N - - - - - - - - (1,430) {1,119) {311}
185,700 201565 & 15,869 § - 71,309 § 71308 § 3,215.00 4804 § 1,588 & {14,920) 1717 0% 46,784
794,217 _ 1414 23,386 249081
395 788 82,723 $ 28 170 ] 31,838



CITY OF VERMILLION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Special Assessments Bliss Pointe Prenhs Park Improvemsnts
Vanance Varance Vanance
Final Favorahle Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budgeted Actual (Untavorabte) Budyeted Actual {Unlavarable) Budgeted Aclual {Unfavorably
REVENUES
Intergav ernmental
Federal grant & - -5 - 5 -8 8 5 5 - -
State grant - - - - - - - -
Mitscelianaous.
Public payments for impravemenis a7 712 87.712 - - . - -
Cantnbutrons and donations,
tram priv ate squices - - - - - - 13.220 13,220
Total revenue 97,712 9r.712 - - - 13.220 13,220
EXPENDOITURES
Current
Pullic works 100,000 - 100,000 - - . - - .
Culture & recreation - - - - - - 347000 340,546 434
Conzervation & Dev efopment - - 45,873 45873 - - -
Total ex penditures 100,000 - 100.900 45971 45.973 - 347.000 340.546 6,454
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{undar) expenditures (2,288} 87.712 100,600 (45,973) (45.973 - (347,000) {327.226) 19,674
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES(USES)
Transfer in 517,588 409,599 {108,800} - - - 147.000 327,326 (19.674)
Proceeds from sale of bonds - - B - - - - - -
Transfer aut {17.012) (17.012) - - - - - - -
Totai other financing
SOUrCES{uses) 500,587 382,587 (164,000} - - - 347.000 327,328 (18.674)
Net changs in fund balances 5 498,299 490,299 & {8.000) (45.873) 45973) § - % . .
Fund balances - beginning (450,299} 45.973 -
Fund balances - sndlng - $ - L3 -
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EXHIBIT A4

72

Bike Path City Hall Airport ftll Overlay
Yarance Budgeted Vanznee Variance Vanance
Frnat Favorable Favorable Final Favorable Final Favorabte
Budgeted Attual {Untavarable) Fnal Actual {Untavorabley Budgeted Aclual (Unfavarable} Budgeled Actual {Unfavarable)
5 H - 5 & S - 8 155,700 26.354 3§ (120.348) & - - -
- - - 6.920 1,464 (5.456) 324 Q00 357.278 71278
: - - 162,620 27 818 (134,802) 324 000 307 278 73.276
- - 173,000 20,282 143,718 497.000 432,036 4,964
- - - - - - 173,000 29.282 143,718 487 000 492.038 4,064
- - - : - {10,380) {1.484) 8,016 {173.000) {04,758 76,042
31,533 31,533 - 1,500,000 - (1,500,0004 10,380 1,484 (8,818) 173.000 84,758 (78,241
. B - (80,100 - 80,100 - - - - - .
31,533 31533 - 1.418.90C (1,419,000} 10,380 1,484 (8.815) 173000 94,758 78.242)
31.533 31512 § $ 1.416.800 -8 {1.419.900) § - % - & - -
— —_—
(31,533) - - -
H - 5 - - -
—_— — —— e
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CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING STATEMENTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS - Internal ‘Service Funds are established {o account for the financing’ of
goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the governmental unit, or to other
governmental un1ts on a cost reimbursement ba51s o o ) :

The followmg funds mcluded in thlS fund type and their purpo'ses arg as follows:

‘ Comer-Fax-PostaEe Fund The ¢opier-fax fund is used to account for alt the operating cost and
replacement of the central copier and fax- machine in city hall. - All departments are billed for copies,

- postage and faxes used at acost plus deprec1at10n

Unemplovment Insurance Fund — This fund has been estabhshed to account for the City seIf—
1nsurance for unemployment insurance ¢laims. ‘ : . :

Equipment Replacement Fund -T he equipment‘replacement fund is used to account for rental
‘of equipment used by all City departments and to provide the means to purchase replacement equipment
when needed, All the major items of the city’s rolling stock are contained in this fund. Each department
ona quarterly basis pays the rental amounts for the equ1pment used by the department .

Custodlal Services Fund — The custodlal services fund i used to- account for the costs
assoc1ated w1th prov1dmg Jamtonal services for all City bu1ld1ngs : '




CITY OF VERMILLION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash
Investments
Accounts recelvable
Interest receivable -
Total current assets
Net Pension Asset
Capital assets:
Machinery & equipment
less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assats
Total assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Pension Related Deferred Gutflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued leave payable
Total current liabilties

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued leave payable
Total non current liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Pension Related Deferrad Inflows

NET POSITION
Net investmemnt in capital assets
Restricted for SDRS Pension Purposes
Unrestricted
Tota! net position

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2015

EXHIBIT B-1

Copier-
Fax- Unemployment Equipment Custodial
Postage [nsurance Replacement Services Totals
7,728 § 443 § 7776 % 8102 § 24 043
- 12,000 625,000 - 637,000
2,514 . ' - - - 2,514
- 83 951 - 1,034
10,242 12,526 633,727 8,102 664,557
- - - 12,468 12,468
8,987 - 5,448,276 2,316 5,458 579
(3,370} - {2,512,459) (1,638} {2,517 467)
5,617 - 2,935,817 678 2,942112
15,859 12,528 3,569,544 21,248 3,619,177
- - - 22,000 22,000
290 - - 1,108 1,398
- - - 4,761 4,761
290 - - 5,869 6,159
- - - 6,686 6,696
- - - 6,696 6,696
290 - - 12,565 12,855
- - - 17.844 17,844
5617 - 2,935,817 878 2,842 112
- - - 16,624 16,624
9,852 12,526 633,727 (4,463) 651,742
15,569 % 12,526 % 3,569,544 $ 12839 § 3,610,478
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EXHIBIT B-2
CITY OF VERMILLION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Copier-
Fax- Unemployment Equipment Custodial
Postage Insurance Replacement Services Totals
Cperating Revenues:
Charges for goods and services 3 16,074 § - 8 439,397 % §7.000 % 542,471
Total operating revenue 16,074 - 439,397 87,000 542,471
Operating expenses:

Personnel services - - - 85,050 85,050
Other current expenses 13,318 - - 2,182 15,480
Depreciation 2,247 - 374,484 179 376,910

Total operating expenses 15,565 - 374,484 87,391 477,440

operating income{loss) 509 - 64,913 (391) 65,031
Nonoperating revenue;
Interest earmed - 89 2,564 - 2,653
Gain{loss) on disposition of assets - - 5,577 - 5,577
Total nonoperating revenue - 89 8 141 - 8,230
Income before contributicns and transfers 509 89 73,054 (391) 73,261
Transfer in - - 6,000 - 6,000
Change in net position 509 89 79,054 (391) 79,261
Net position - beginning 15,060 12,437 3,480,490 {1,503) 3,516,484
Prior Period Adjustment - - - 14,733 14,733
Adjusted Net Position-Beginning 15,060 12,437 3,490,480 13,230 3,531,217
Net position - ending $ 15,568 3 12,526 § 3,569,644 § 12,839 % 3,610,478
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EXHIBIT B-3
CITY OF VERMILLION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Copier-
Fax- Unemployment Equipment Custodial
Postage Ingurance Replacement Services Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 3 16,184 § - B 435,397 § 87,000 § 542,581
Cash paid for personal services - - - (84,363) (84,363)
Cash paid to suppliers (13,628) - - (2,117} (15,748)
Net cash provided cperating activities 2555 - 439 397 520 442 472
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acguisition and construction of capital assets - - 1234,422) - (234,422)
Proceeds from sale of assets - - 15,950 . 15,950
Transfer In - - 8,000 - 6,000
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities - - (212,472) - (212,472)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments - 49 2,008 - 2,057
Purchase and sale of invesiments - - {225,000) - (225,000}
MNet cash provided {used far) investing activities - 49 {222,8982) - (222,943)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 2,555 49 3,033 520 7,057
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 5,173 394 3,843 7,582 16,892
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 5 7728 % 443 % 7,776 & 8,102 % 24,049
RECCNCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TONET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cperating inceme {loss) $ 209 % -5 84,913 3 {391} B 65,031
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operaling activities:
Depreciation 2,247 - 374,484 178 378,910
{(Increase) decrease in assets and increase (decrease)
in liabilities:
Accounts receivable 110 - - - 110
Net Pension Asset - - - 9,943 9,943
Deferred Qutflows of Resources - - . (8,027) {8,027)
Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - (5,807) {5,807)
Accounts payable 311} - - 45 1268}
Accrued leave payable - - - 2,578 2,678
Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities 3 2,655 § - % 438,397 § 520 § 442 472
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Gain{loss} on disposal of fixed assets - - 5577 - 5,577
Total noncash investing, capital and financing activitias & - % - 5 5577 $ - % 5577
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CITY OF VERMILLION
STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Vermllllon S comprehenswe annual financial report presents detalled
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
~disclosures, and' required supplementary information says about the government’s overall ﬁnanc1a1
health

. Contents: S | o _ - Pages
; Financial Trends ' : : o = - 76-83

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand -
how the government’s. financial perfonnance and well- bemg have changed
. aver tlme o T : e

.ReVenue'Capaclity S o ' " o ' o o © 84-88

These schedules contain inf(’)rmatioh o help the reader assess the govern-
ment’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt .Capfdcity - - - : o e | 89;93

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the- éfforda-
~ bility of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the gov—
ernment’s ability to issue addltlonal debt in the future

"Demographic and.EConomic Information - . c ' o 94-96°

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the -
reader understand the environment w1thm which the government’s finan-
cial activities take place.

'Oper_ating Information . A : S 97-_9,8

These schedules contain service and infrastructure ‘data to help the reader .
understand how the information in the government’s financial report re-
lates to the services the govemment provides and the activities it performs.

' ] )
-Sources: Unless otherwise noted the fo1mat10n in these schedules is derived for the comprehenswe annual reports for the
re]evant year :



Govermmental Activities
Net [nvesiment in Capital Assets  $
Restricied for:
BBB
Capital Projocts
Debt Service
Parks Capital
Library
Business Improvement District’
SDRS Pension Purposes
Stormwaler
Cumulative Reserve
Unrestricted
Total Governmenial Activities
Net Position $

Business-Type Aclivilies
Net Investment in Capitai Assets  §
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Landfill Clasure Postciosure
SDRS Pension Purposes
Unrestricted
Total Business-Type Activities
Net Pasition 5

Primary Government
Net Investment in Capital Assets  §
Restricted for:
BBB
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Parks Capital
Library
Business Improvement District
Stormwater
Landfill Closure Postclosure
Cumulative Reserve
SDRS Pension Purposes
Unrestricted
Total Primary Govemment
Met Position $

CITY OF VERMILLION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{acerual basis of accounting)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE NET POSITION BY COMPONENT'

TABLE 1

2006 3007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
8197173 § 15775208 17408495 $ 22167991 5 233057651 5 23217045 5 26379227 § 27679603 § 20109336 § 28161730
36,499 128,654 154,418 125,799 144,278 175,308 180,503 217,605 255,754 288,298

- 3,531,036 - ) . ' ‘

534, . - ) 45.973
1,056,138 1,276,406 1,679,918 1,600,924 940,546 595,352 899,886 529,942 540,090 3,487,320
. . - - - - - 14.030 11,414 82,738
" ; . - . 106,132 21,397 16141 23,366 28.170
. - - - - - - - 24,061 31838
; - - - - - . . 996,939
180,487 272,825 249,860 386,220 490,302 859,022 823,145 212,911 802,684 1,003,863
- 158,080 158,080 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,080 158,060 158,060 158.060
4.072,004 942 859 5,136,831 4,116,964 4,255,995 5,796,886 4,587,553 4,617,005 3,307.966 5,476,685
R B eV AT 24847645 5 7053695 $ 29340833 § 30008705 $ TIOR8 T BT, 3 34378706 § 37755630
16,738,266 % 17,189,168 1TBITAIT S 19705309 5 20882426 § 20417403 5 22036403 § 23380670 § 26,523,053 § 27.122.901
810,174 838,300 834,790 1,444,250 1,521,831 1,544,613 1,515,809 1,108,543 1,175,083 1,178.908
224,505 230,238 214,880 210,879 207.915 106,362 186,161 180,017 130,851 122,863
632,798
5,681,029 7,053,543 7,996,485 8,006,051 5,608,530 9,615,384 10,920,279 11,892,563 9,971,067 9,854,143
e R 26863572 § 2936649 & 31490702 s 3A767757 5 __GAGETRZ. § T WSSTI9 8 T STEOOOS s ST 13
32935442 § 33064377 35265918 3 4LBTII00 § 44240077 § 44620348 S 441560 § 51060273 § 565632391 53,284,631
36,458 129,854 154,418 125,799 144,278 175,308 180,503 217,605 255.754 288,206
; 3,531,996 - - . . - , 45973

1,865,312 2,214,805 2,514,708 3,045,184 2,462,377 2,129,965 2,415,605 1,728,485 1,815.173 8.576,228
i . . . - ; ; 14,030 11,414 82,738
. ) . . . 106,132 21,307 16,941 23.366 28,170
_ N _ _ - - - - 24,061 31,838
180,487 272,825 249,860 368,220 480,302 659,022 823,145 812,911 802,684 1,003 863
224,505 230,238 214,880 210,879 207,915 196,362 186,161 180,017 130,851 122,863
i 158,060 158,060 158,080 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,080 158,060
- ! - . ) ) - 1,529.737
9,753,123 8,048,412 13,133,376 12,123,015 13,064,526 15,412,970 15,516,832 16,510,558 12,270,033 15,230,828
44996368 $ __ AB5B07 ¢ _B17i1218 § _57002857 5 _G0767535 ¢ __G3ATEAST 3 _G7TITAZ $ TTOERDAT $ TS0 s 76,637,252

'Accounting standards require that net position be reported in three components in the financial statements:

net mvestment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Net position is considered restricied

only when (1} an external party, such as the State of South Dakola or the federal governmen, places a restriction on how
the resources may be used, or {2) enabling legislation is enacted by the City.
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Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Conservation & Development
Interest on L ong-term debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses
Business-Type Activities:
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Ligquor
Golf
Jomnt Powers Landfill
Curbside Recycling
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses
Total Prmary Government Expenses
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services.
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfarg
Cufture & Recrealion
Qperating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contnibutions
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Liguor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfili
Curbside Recycling
Cperating Grants & Contriutions
Capital Grants & Contributions
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues
Total Primary Government Program Revenues
Net{Expensel/Revenue’
Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government Net Revenues {Expenses)

$

$

5

2006

2007

CITY CF VERMILLION
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN YEARS
(acerual basis of accounting)

2008

2009

2010

TABLE 2

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
1,004,096 1038217 8 1,007,570 1,185,168 § 1,336,341 § 1,324,803 § 1325411 § 1405584 § 1410726 § 1372494
1,661,678 1,748,482 1,923,413 2,026,733 2,118,547 2,028,921 2,211,445 2,325,498 2,529,195 2,430,332
1,237,318 1,353,087 1,602,031 1,661,217 1,656,337 1,714,248 1,630.835 1.767.762 1,885,352 1,988,965
365,189 374,133 402,520 415,740 412,409 424263 443 581 491,543 ‘a91.071 543,155
978,573 1,006,229 1,171,859 1,203,636 1,177,757 1,161,245 1,146,227 1,219,328 1,325,700 1382212
254,220 786,823 732797 708,482 368,202 397,220 498,825 526,765 2,485,337 492,999
134,858 181,374 298,297 301,118 272722 241,502 202,154 183,194 208517 251,125
5,635,952 6,489,245 7,228,677 7,402,054 7 342,315 7 292,611 7,458,478 7,912,684 10,335,998 5,478,283
2,982,411 3,405 570 3,539,287 4,025,288 4,661,735 4,995,547 5,051,041 4991778 5,055,658 5.159.008
1,067 672 1,171,661 1,264,548 1,338,150 1,342 532 1,389,184 1,435,808 1,408,578 1,474,754 1,542,802
1,049,072 1,305,808 1,284,215 1,335,159 1,345,153 1,605,314 1,694,154 1,789,908 1,723,732 1,758,756
818,302 917,741 4,003,575 1,000,796 1,017,580 1,018,600 1,043,401 1,017,830 1,065,287 1.293.291
1,047,729 902,370 897 527 840,409 834736 841,741 838,399 786,751 788,147 800,842
839,151 927,407 1,220,527 1,022,888 1,288,114 1,273,463 1,242,461 1,174,487 1,428,877 1438.417
- - - 33,407 98,197 93,047 99,467 95813 100,321 97,913
7,754,337 B B30,557 5,200,779 595,107 10,588,247 11,216,896 771,404,761 11,266,145 11,636,786 12,097,529
13,430 389 15,195,802 § 16,438,456 16,397,261 $ 17,930,862 § _ 16,509,507 & _ 16,063,233 % 15,185,629 5 29.972684 § 20550312
158,477 197,706 $ 291,204 249372 204330 § 60,385 § 211,495 § 266,299 B 324531 § 377.732
35,933 32,973 43680 43573 44,364 258,152 262610 36.873 38.267 49,604
933,078 487,046 764,860 402,603 563,566 359,478 a76.820 538,981 503.841 157,524
191,584 26,861 289,839 344 852 339,053 360,623 321,131 378.785 248,062 538.048
73217 B1.003 67,716 63 524 75,145 79417 75728 74,338 70,352 60.700
. 26,897 257,213 64553 89,026 71739 104,314 349,201 267 861 313523
1,513,499 723410 410,251 3,677,885 223818 544,239 1,988,284 719.768 1,545,862 1.483.803
2,911,788 1.010.696 2,124,853 4,846,162 1628,302 2,333,733 3,342,387 2.364.338 3216806 3.181.024
4,282,362 4,569,319 4,900,026 5,262,358 5,884,283 6,077,335 6,187,213 6,131,088 6.161.105 6,350,588
1,449,187 1,556,163 1,497 831 1,614,565 4,506,335 1,568,609 1.772,353 1,689,093 1686,595 1.744 965
1,175,089 1,267,106 1,335,134 1.420,454 1,493,778 1,647,990 1,737,514 1,761.639 1.828,085 1.852.034
967,937 1,094,738 1,179,545 1,165 625 1,181,977 1,185,643 1217.013 1,183,334 1,246,418 1.498.390
756419 731,073 B59 459 683,709 509,291 624,007 654,510 638,437 623.510 610115
868,051 1,303,408 1,171.794 1,088,488 1,236,887 1.241.842 1,151,965 1,080,270 1.107.835 1.315.471
B - - 29,941 111,838 116,759 110,249 109,783 100.223 108 267
429 4100 40,525 1,972 93,866 100 100 - - 7.000
683,679 19,033 279226 1,188,705 775.438 14,473 118,970 ar1,637 1,011,477 30.291
10,183,173 10,644,940 11,673,540 12,365,817 12,893,723 12,496,759 12,950,307 12,965,297 13,765,648 13.528.421
13,054,961 1245563 § __ 13,195,503 17,211,679 § 14523025 $ 14630492 § _ 16.792689 $ 15379635 5 _ 16084454 $ 16709445
(2.724,144) {4,678,549) {5,103.814) (2,555,932) (5.713.013) {4.958,878) (4,116,096) {5.555 346) {7.417.092) (5.287.259}
2,388,836 2,014,383 1,863,861 2,770,710 2,305,476 1,279,863 1,545,546 1,699,152 2,128,852 1,437,392
{335 308) [2664,166) & (3.239,053) 14778 $  (3,407,537) $ __ (3.679.015) & __ (2570,550) § __ (3.856.194) $ __ (4.088230) & _(3.850.867)
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General Revenues

Governmental Activities:
Properiy Taxes
Sales Taxes
Unrestricted State/County Shared Revenue
Other State Taxes
Unrestricied Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenue
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers

Tetal Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activiiies
Property Taxes
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenue
Gain(l.oss) on sale of capital assets
insurance recovery net of fire loss
Transfers

Total Business-Type Activities

Tota! Primary Government

Change in Net Position

Gavernmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

2006

2007

2008

2008

TABLE 2 {conlmued)

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

1459641 % 1,547,450 § 1820788 % 1827924 3 1872491 § 1893823 § 1,879,186 2,024,530 2077118 & 2.164.952
2,836,754 3,273,209 3,513,311 3,108,356 3,422,702 3,331,784 3,407,050 3.500,823 3,834 580 4,006,345
74,564 80,355 93,542 74,386 72,312 70,970 F2704 77,480 78.564 -
162.096 343.118 370,622 251,331 136,313 125 554 77802 54.88% 33.287 232:1353)
89,437 79.800 84,002 58.729 53,709 76,418 83,275 55,585 83 464 31373
803,280 35,096 2.335 11,851 28,362 72.492 11.274 1.143 195,441 5577
866,137 846,319 1,022,801 911,657 937,999 937,412 931,586 1037.412 1.147 057 1.137 412
65,091,909 5.215,147 6,714,411 6,244,244 6,523,888 5,508,494 6.552.878 6,751,862 7.248 511 7770007
254,823 300,773 373,187 435,805 480,052 505,713 501,007 498,282 - -
267,403 345272 285,830 164,057 145,933 249,674 227 946 187,143 174,615 172 961
42,745 43,172 42,437 44,012 60,741 60,988 61.736 81,414 B81.840 77.229

- - - - - 490 30,245 30.047 - -

- - - - - - 608,208 435515 - -
1886.137) {846,319} {1,022,801) (911,657) (937,999} {937.412) {931,586) {1.037,.412) {1.147,057) (1.137.412)
{321,1686) {i57.102) {311.547) (267,783} (251,273} (120,547} 497,557 194.989 {880.601) {887.222)
2, /70743 § 5058045 3 5,402,864 5 5976451 % 6272615 § 6,387,947 ¢ 7,060,435 6,946,851 6.368.810 % 6,882,785
3,367,765 $ 1.536,598 § 1810597 § 3688312 % 810875 § 1543616 § 2446,782 1,196,518 132419 § 2472748
2,067,670 1,857,281 1,552.314 2,602 927 2,054,203 1,158,316 2,043,103 1,894,141 1.238.261 550,170
5435435 § 3383879 § 3162911 % 6191238 § 2,865,078 & 2,708,932 § 4,489,885 3.080,657 1.370680 % 3.022.918

' Net {expense)/revenue is the diffsrence between the expenses and program revenues of 2
function or program. It indficates the degree to which a function or program supporis itself with

its own fees and grants versus its reiiance upon funding from taxes and other general revenues.
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CITY OF VERMILLION

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 3

General Capital Liquor
Sales Improvement Lodging &
Fiscal Property Tax Sales Tax Dining Tax Liquor Total
Year Taxes 1st Penny 2nd Penny 3rd Penny Tax Taxes
2006 1459641 3 1,224,475 3 1,210,604 § 201875 % 53,489 $ 4,149,834
2007 1,547,450 1,483,129 1,469,435 320,645 55,508 4,876,165
2008 1,620,798 1,834,487 1,618,610 260,214 £9.422 5,193,631
2009 1,827,924 1,430,573 1,416,874 260,909 59,348 4,995,628
2010 1,872 491 1,568,879 1,567,741 286,082 61,116 5,358,309
2011 1,893,823 1,513,651 1,512,831 305,302 61,679 5,287 286
2012 1.679,186 1,547 605 1,546,945 312,500 52,170 5,448,406
2013 2,024,530 1,587,753 1,586,756 326,314 65,315 5,593,668
2014 2,077,118 1,655,401 1,656,328 322,851 64,117 5,775,815
2015 2,164,952 3 1.835176 $ 1,833,291 § 337,878 % 65935 § 6,237,232
CITY OF VERMILLION
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY(in thousands)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Transportation
Agriculiure Communications Finance
Fizcal Forestry & Electric, Gas & Wholesale Retail Insuance & Public
Year Fishing Constructicn Manufacturing  Sanitary Services Trade Trade Real Estate Services Adm. Other Total
2006 683 % 415 § 2918 § 12,639 § 1,208 § 72264 3 1242 § 10,234 § n/a § nfa 5 101,503
2007 7706 3E8 3876 12,685 1,298 88,716 1,547 16,536 nia n/a 119,806
2008 798 297 4,092 13,815 1,759 86,498 1,289 11,523 nia nfa 120,071
2009 i.021 5,848 5,737 17,653 5,135 113,188 1,626 18,586 7 9 162,718
2010 1,048 1,887 3,404 21,126 9,940 115,964 1,660 20,455 13 84 175,581
2011 824 2,716 4,286 18,001 6,884 121,996 1,553 18,579 18 374 177,231
2012 [$1-3¢] 5,538 4,935 18,610 5,370 124,460 2,012 20,563 nfa 588 183,763
2013 1,401 5,185 3,757 19,413 5,835 126,517 2,364 21,689 nfa 87 187,228
2014 1,494 3,894 4,956 20,755 11,835 102,286 2,292 19,036 n/a 85 166,733
2015 1751 % 7,832 3 5883 3 20,089 § 11,626 § 140,734 % 2310 § 23,088 § nia 5 79 § 214,502

Scurce: State of South Dakota Department of Revenue and Regulation, Municipal Taxable Sales by City



General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendable®
Restrictad?
Committed®
Assigned®
Unassigned®

Total General Fund

Al Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved reporied in:
Specia!l Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund’
Nonspendabla?
Restricted?
Committed®
Assigned?
Unassigned®
Total All Other Governmental Funds

Total Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Nonspendable?
Restricted?
Committag?®
Assigned?
Unassigned?
Total Governmental Funds

CITY OF VERMILLION
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 4

2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2019 2012 2013 2014 2015
7.002 8 184,714 § 199,518 § 191,878 § 204,520 $ -3 -5 -8 - % .
1,868,700 1,850,283 2,161,902 2,173,805 2,305,886 - - ; - .
B N - . - 201,366 206,626 203,072 224 968 211,386
- - - - - - - - - 559,241
- - - - - - - 500,000 500,000 500,000
- - - - - 178,135 215,396 210,282 232,220 758,014
- - - - - 2,331,213 2,451,984 2,077,678 2,137,148 2,048,052
1,877,602 7 034,657 ?.301,420 2,365,653 2510,406 270,714 7,868,006 2,991,232 3,004,334 4,077.593
557,164 4,496,827 995,897 1,089,107 497 633 - ; - ) N
1,921,754 2,440,337 2,747 582 2,112,502 2,457,458 y . ) . )
25,470 (66,835) 45,238 {57,251) (52,750} - . - . .
; B, . - - 1,510,490 1,646,030 1,583,805 1,721,867 4,474,845
. ; ; - - 3,098,047 2,099,534 2,073,348 2,551,614 3,186,083
- - - - - 22,344 8,255 ; ; ;
- - - - - {337,391) {479,396) {112,177) (557.194) (250,395)
3,504,388 6,870,329 3,788,717 3,144,358 2,502,342 4,793,430 3,274,423 3,543,566 3,716,287 7411,432
565,066 4,681,541 1,195,415 1,280,885 702,153 - N - . ;
1,868,700 1,850,283 2,101,902 2,173,805 2,305,886 - - N ) N
1,821,754 2,440,337 2,747,582 2,112,502 2,457,459 - - - - -
25,470 (56,835) 45,238 {57.251) {52,750) - ; N . .
. . - . . 201,366 200,526 203,072 724,966 211,386
. . - - - 1,510,480 1,646.030 1,583,895 1.721.857 5,034.086
. . - . - 3,098,047 2,099,534 2,573,848 3.051.614 3,686,983
- - - - - 200,478 223 651 210,282 232,220 758,914
. - . . - 1,893,822 1,972,588 1,963,701 1.579 954 1,797 656
4981990 8 _ 8905376 §__ 6090137 $__ 6510041 8 _ 5412748 $ _ 7,004204 $_ 6,142429 5 6534798 §  B8I0621 § 11480005

' The fluctuations in the fund balance result from construction projects in which funds are spent in one year

and reimbursed in another fiscal year.

2 The City implemteted GASB 54 in fiscal 2011, which changed fund balance classifications for periads baginning

after June 15, 2010.
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Revenues
Taxes
Licenses & Parmits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Goods & Services
Fines & Forfeits
Public Payments for Improvements
Investment Earmings
Rentals
Specfal Assessments
Contributions & Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Culture-Recreation
Conservaticn and Development
Debt Service
Principal’
Interest
Bond Issuance Costs
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
{under) Expenditures

Cther Financing Sources {Uses)
issuance of Bonds
Sale of Capital Assets
Transfer In
Transfer Out
Proceeds from Sals of Bonds
Tota! Other Financing Sources (Uses)

MNet Change in Fund Balances
Change Tn inventory

Dept Service as a percentage of non-
capital expendilures

CITY OF VERMILLION
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{medified acerual basis of aceounting)

TABLE 5
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

4162763 § 4734579 5 5198227 § 4986765 § 5366552 § 536435 § 5498306 § 5626474 § 6981736 5 6381721
169,888 191,586 201,064 215,277 219374 220,351 230,068 234,552 245 127 I3991643
1833413 956,275 965.288 4138907 743632 586,907 2,429,826 889,783 825,707 1,647,009
260,440 358,980 455,395 454 080 495782 486,226 380,372 491 652 5261061 .537‘570
32,263 28,904 40,033 41,480 41,336 38,715 35,544 38,728 37,644 45.860
106,246 839 173.240 ) 14,989 59,949 10,408 77.420 7.431 97.712
58,241 210,547 274834 202,604 83,130 58,262 57.689 37,647 34381 27,568
30,919 24,742 14,080 12,670 15,891 18112 15,207 15,082 17.512 23.709
13314 167,061 141.726 168,406 196,310 153,294 157,952 109,544 138,078 47.345
48,189 4,494 3,238 20,275 15,170 840,927 213,255 241,789 40,639 134‘998

47 667 88,194 79,881 58,194 53,354 54,806 485,394 44 404 47170 113‘350
6,863,343 6,766 482 7,547 006 10,300,748 7,253,540 7,878,994 9,074.921 7,805,115 7,881,526 9,357:495
1,083 423 1,008,502 1,066,024 1,074,365 1,129,960 1,143,773 1,131,980 1,194,801 1,216,569 1,203,393
1,565,366 1,642,683 1,809,125 1,610,230 2.001.762 1.927.998 2,095,628 2,300,059 2392 527 2,400,431
700,058 797 688 1,008 391 857 217 08,703 942,083 880,157 1,002,231 1,055,311 1,072,502
349,458 361,284 392 330 399,563 403 645 404 509 418,853 468,083 462,862 523,881
864,365 883,955 968,093 1,018,138 1,018.487 1,007,533 1,031,723 1005177 1,095,026 1,100,075
295126 827,730 732787 708,482 368,202 397,229 498 825 525,765 2,463 201 492 999
230,820 265,763 405,142 488,290 412,156 550,000 226,570 557,356 207,355 215,785
115,359 129,696 339,970 283,218 262,207 232.991 202154 184,811 191,470 266,768

- 116,342 - - - . - - 15,000 -
2,047,732 1724 974 4,986,253 4,984,357 978,348 405,032 4378578 1213316 1.318.579 1,226,090
7,251,807 7,761,634 11,706,125 11,734 861 7,483,680 7,021 158 10,873,368 8,352,604 10,478,000 8,501,924
(388,464) {995,152} (4,159,115) {1,434,113) (230,020} 857,838 {1,788,447) {547 489) (2,338 474) 865,572
405,755 4,492,254 398,325 . - - - - - -
1041.425 . - - - - - - - -
1.147.553 1,496,554 1,745,305 2,654,412 1657.913 1,511,547 2,801,359 2.627.598 2,150,639 2,686,044
(266.216) (657.132) (743 .104) (1.792,755) (820.501) (587.029)  (1863947)  (1490,286)  {(1.012.082) (1.554.632)
1,732,000 2,695,000

2,328,518 5,331,676 1329128 861,657 837,412 324 518 937 412 937,412 2 870,557 3,826,412
1840055 § 4336524 5 (2,829,953 (572456) § 607,392 § 1782354 § (861,035 § 389923 5 334083 5  4.601984
(6,588) 18,752 14,804 (7,640) 12,6842 (3,154) (740) 2,446 21.894 {13,580)
£6.85% 8.80% 11.09% 11 59% 10.37% 11.99% 6.60% 10.40% 4. 55% 5.63%



CITY OF VERMILLION
ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 6

Taxable Taxable Total Estimated

Value Value Total Direct Actual Assessed Value
Fiscal Residential Commercial Taxable Tax Assessed as a Percentage
Year Prcperty Property Value Rate Value of Actual Value
20068 % 140,513,785 § 105,542,366 § 248,456,151 § 6.06 $ 250,246,367 95%
2007 154,265,781 111,927,169 266,192,850 5.97 301,806,068 88%
2008 161,396,656 123,046,250 284,442 906 6.06 323,230,575 88%
2009 158,645,014 123,827,060 282,372,074 6.38 318,345,087 B9%
2010 167,307,757 130,355,851 297 663,708 6.18 350,192,558 85%
2011 179,874,956 137,302,095 317,177,051 6.02 373,149,472 85%
2012 176,917,718 139,821,409 316,739,127 6.29 372,634,267 85%
2013 187,196,370 153,658,478 340,754,848 6.08 400,888,058 85%
2014 187,844,104 156,989,204 344,833,308 6.21 405,686,245 85%
2015 % 189,917,845 % 170,234,195 § 360,152,040 6.11 $ 423,708,282 85%

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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CITY OF VERMILLION
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND CVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(Per 31,000 of Assessed Value)

TABLE 7

LAST TEN YEARS
COverlapping Rates
City of Vermillion Clay County Vermiliion School District Total
Debt Total Debt Total Debt Total Direct and
Fiscal Operating Service City Operating Service County Operating Service School Special  Overlapping
Year Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Districts Rates
2005 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.610 - 5.610 17.230 0.750 17.980 0.050 29.700
b 6.060 - 6.060 58610 - 5610 10.510 0.750 11.260 0.050 22.980
2007 a 5570 - 5.970 5.530 - 5.530 16.070 0.680 16.750 0.050 28.300
b 5.970 - 5.970 5.530 - 5.530 10.020 0.680 10.700 0.050 22.250
2008 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.350 - 5350 16.870 0.640 17.510 0.050 28.970
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.350 - 5.350 10.390 0.640 11.030 0.050 22.490
2009 a 6.380 - 6.380 5470 - 5470 16.637 0572 17.209 0.044 29.103
b 6.380 - 6.380 5470 - 5.470 10.284 0.572 10.856 0.044 22750
2010 a 6.185 - 6.185 5.366 - 5.366 16.335 0.565 16.900 0.044 28.495
b 6.185 - 6.185 5366 - 5.366 10.142 0.565 10.707 0.044 22.302
2011 a 6.016 - 6.016 5.193 - 5.193 16.552 0.542 17.094 0.042 28.345
b 6.016 - 6.016 5193 - 5.193 10.275 0.542 10.817 0.042 22.088
2012 a 6.290 - 6.290 5214 - 5214 16.698 0.544 17.242 0.041 28.787
b 6.290 - 6.290 5.214 - 5214 10.343 0.544 10.887 (.041 22.432
2013 a 6.064 - 6.064 4.872 - 4872 16.636 0474 17.110 0.039 28.085
b 6.064 - 6.064 4.872 - 4872 10.355 0.474 10.829 0.039 21.804
2014 a 6.210 - 6.210 4.681 - 4.681 16.321 0.424 16.745 0.034 27.670
b 6.210 - 6.210 4.681 - 4,681 10.168 0.424 10.582 0.034 21.517
2015 a 6.114 - 6.114 4.445 - 4.445 15.991 0.398 16.389 0.031 26.979
b 8.114 - 6.114 4.445 - 4.445 9877 0.398 10.275 0.031 20.865

a Non Owner Occupied
b Owner Occupied

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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CITY OF VERMILLION
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

TABLE 8

2015 2006
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Vaiuation Rank Vajuations Valuation Rank Valuations
Walmart Stores, Inc 3 6,835,080 1 161% $ 3628,318 3 1.39%
Polarts industries, Ing. 6,416,124 2 1.51% 4,641,544 2 1.78%
JH Investments 5,531,769 3 1.31% - - -
Hatle Investments 3,078,917 4 0.73% - - -
William R. Wood 2,944 148 5 0.69% - - -
MarketPlace Vermillion [.LC 2,224 870 3] 0.53% - - -
Hogen Hause Properties LLC 2,212,690 7 0.52% - - -
TMBL LLC 2,128,376 8 0.50% - - -
East River Properties, LLC 1,976,313 g 0.47% - - -
ARC LLC 1,870,275 10 0.44% - - -
Laurence and Beth Brady - - - 5,185,717 1 2.00%
505 W Maln Limited Partnership - - - 2,391,343 4 0.92%
HyVee - - - 2,307,189 5 C.89%
Harlow & Lynne Hatle Trust - - - 2,242,587 6 0.86%
Charles Allison - - - 1,858,129 7 0.71%
LTA, LLC - - - 1,947 856 8 0.75%
Qwest - - - 1,680,216 9 0.65%
Kirk & Elizaheth Hogen - - - 1,725,220 10 0.66%
Total Principal Taxpayers 35,219,572 8.31% 27,628,159 10.62%
All Other Taxpayers 388,488,710 91.69% 232,621,208 89.38%
Tota! Assessed Valuation $ 423708282 100% $ 260,249,367 —100%

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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CITY OF VERMILLION

FROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE @

Subsequent Percentage Percentage

Current Percent Years Total of Total Tax Outstand.  of Deling.

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax Coilsctions Delinquent Taxes to

Year Tax Levy Coliections  Collected  Caollections Collections __to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
2006 § 1285714 § 1,267,410 98.58% § 17,988 3 1,285,356 99.98% § 49,807 3.87%
2007 1,376,499 1,358,758 98.71% 17,708 1,376,467 100.00% 27,208 1.98%
2008 1,436,746 1,412,780 98.33% 23,573 1,436,353 99.97% 37,427 2,60%
2009 1,548,344 1,621,174 98.25% 26,096 1,547,270 £9.93% 43,787 2.83%
2010 1,607,062 1,583,404 98.53% 23,029 1,606,433 59.96% 37,6800 2.34%
2011 1,850,542 1,629,803 98.74% 15,799 1,645,602 99.70% 38,794 2.35%
2012 1,718,031 1,690,684 98.41% 22,940 1,713,624 99.74% 58,470 3.40%
2013 1,792,285 1,762,017  88.31% 24,637 1,786,655 99.69% 74,217 4.14%
2014 2,064,257 2,033,514 098.51% 24,289 2,057,803 99.69% 80,760 3.91%
2015 § 2138526 § 2,114,001 9885% 3 - $ 2,114,001 98.85% $ 49 554 2.32%

85



TABLE 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BILLINGS & COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of Total

Special Assessment Collection Qutstanding
Assessments Paid or To Amount Assessments

Year Outstanding Cancelied Outstanding December 31*
2006 % 806,507 § 112,275 13.92% § 694,232
2007 711,485 103,058 14.48% 608,428
2008 979,380 112,240 11.46% 867,140
2009 886,278 166,206 18.75% 720,072
2010 773,570 290,668 37.57% 482,902
2011 484,926 118,074 24.35% 366,852
2012 390,154 131,753 33.77% 258,401
2013 333,516 85,739 25.71% 247777
2014 264,278 135,801 51.39% 128,477
2015 % 540,317 % 38,194 7.07% § 502,123

"Amount on financial statement is shown net of aliowance for uncollectible special assessments.
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CITY OF VERMILLION
RATIOS OF DUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN YEARS

Table 11

Percentage
Gavernmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total of

Fiscal Revenue Notes Capital Revenue Notes Capital Primary Personal Per

Year Bends Payable lLeases Bonds Payable Leases Government Income Capita
2006 $ 2238174 § 40907 3 - % 10,025,790 § 300,483 § 234,072 § 12,846,426 4.26% 1,303
2007 1,986,665 - 4,475,000 11,610,482 324,721 87,864 18,384,732 5.52% 1,843
2008 2,027,848 - 4,355,000 11,201,109 396,737 24,912 18,005,505 4.41% 1,716
200% 1,888,558 - 4,185,000 18,168,279 407,878 - 24,450,715 5.79% 2,347
2010 765,000 - 4,010,000 20,287,816 800,860 - 25,863,678 6.11% 2445
2011 390,000 - 3,825,000 19,759,654 687,003 - 24,661,657 5.41% 2,333
2012 355,000 - 3,640,498 18,200,435 570,408 229,670 22,996,009 4.73% 2127
2013 - - 3,438,140 18,216,709 451,009 208,318 22,315174 4.22% 2,064
2014 1,732,000 - 3,230,785 19,000,452 328,738 188,301 24 480,278 nfa 2,284
2015 % 1,732,000 8 - % 5710000 § 18,075352 § 203,525 § 166,602 § 25,887,479 n/a 2411

n/a - This data was not avalable at the time of this report.
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TABLE 12
CITY OF VERMILLION
COMPUTATICN OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
December 31, 2015

Net General Percentage

Obligation Applicable To This City's

Debt Governmental Share
Jurisdiction Outstanding Unit' of Debt
School District $ 1,020,000 56.70% 3 578,374
City of Vermiflion direct debt ‘ 7,442,000
Total Direct and

Overlapping Debt 5 8,020,374

Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Clay County Director
of Equalization. Debt outstanding provided by the Vermillion School District.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the cutstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Vermillion.
This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability tc issue and repay
long-term, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businessess should ke taken into
account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible
for repaying debt, of each overlapping government.

' The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the taxable property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determinging the portion the City's taxable value that
is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the School District's total taxable
property value.
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Debt Limnit

Totai, net debt applicable to limit
Legat Debt Margin

Total net debt applicable to limit
as a percentage of debt limit

$

3

CITY OF VERMILLION
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 13

2008 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13,012,361 15,080,303 § 16161529 3§ 15917253 § 17,509,630 §$ 18,657,474 % 18,631,713 § 20,044,403 $ 20,284,312 § 21,185.414
9,558,972 8,825 808 8,125 471 7,236,640 6,579,204 5,868,649 4,551,292 5,254,395 8,218,291 7.785291
3,455,389 6264697 % 8,036,058 § 8,680,613 § 10,530,476 % 12,788,825 & 14080421 § 14,790,007 § 12,066,021 % 13,400,123
73.45% 58.49% 50.28% 45.46% 39 86% 31.45% 24.43% 26.21% 40.52% 36.75%
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN CALCULATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015
Total 2015 Taxable Value % 360,152 040
assessed Value ~ 423708382
Debt Limit - 5% of Assessed Value 21,185,414
AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO LiMIT
Tetal Bonded Debt and Long-Term Nates Payakle 10.654 995
Less: amount set aside for repayment
of debt
Joint Powers Revenue Bonds {18.337)
Wastewater Revenue Bonds (213,092)
Refunding Escrow for Cartificates of Parlicipation {2,.638.275)
{2,869.704)
DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT 7,785,291
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 3 13,400,123
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CITY OF VERMILLION
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

Direct Dapreciation Net Revenue Payments Paymenis Total

Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service

Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage

2006 4,191,985 2,965,244 275317 § 1,502,068 % 80,000 $ 11,380 § 91,380 16.44 §

2007 4,592,516 3,362,594 286,811 1,516,733 90,000 7,018 97,018 15.63

2008 4,868,374 3,507,191 308,305 1,667,488 90,000 763 90,763 18.37

2000 ? 5,158,478 4,004,115 311,894 1,466,257 - - . nfa

2010 ° 517,889 - - 517,889 - 391,211 391,211 1.32

2011 °® 738,404 - - 738,404 185,000 384,797 569,797 1.30

2012 ? 743,301 - - 743,301 190,000 382,485 572,485 1.30

2013 ° 734,806 - - 734,806 185,000 385,533 580,533 1.27

2014 3 715,386 - - 715,396 195,000 379,684 574,684 1.24

2015 ? 717,330 - - % 747330 $ 200,000 3 371,163 % 571,163 126 $
' GAAP Basis

?General Cbligation Bonds were paid off in 2009

2 Starting in 2010 a surcharge fee was pledged for the debt service

90

Net Revenue
Available
For Debt

Service Plus

Depreciation

Table 14

Coverage
Without
Depreciation

1,777,385
1,803,544

1,973,783

1,778,151

517,889

738,404

743,301

734,806

715,398

717,330

19.45

18.59

2175

n/a

1.32

1.30

1.30

1.27

1.24

1.26



CITY OF VERMILLION

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

WATER ENTERPRISE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS!

Net Revenue

Table 15

. Direc_i Depreciatign Net Revenue Payments Payments Total Ié;?i:}asllj Coverage
Fiscal Net Cperating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without

Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Dabt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2006 $ 1,350,043 3 875,616 143,885 $ 518412 § 87145 § 82,757 3 169,902 3.05 % 662,297 3.80
2007 2 1,354,889 1,091,280 148,379 411,978 90,721 77.441 168,162 2.45 560,357 333
2007 ° 145,748 - - 145748 - 74,969 74,969 1.84 145,748 1.94
2008 ? 1,158,017 1,099,739 187,002 245,280 ©4,446 73,716 168,162 1.48 432282 2.57
2008 3 293627 - - 293627 137,706 88 447 226,153 1.30 293,827 1.30
2009 ? 1,222,490 1,172,310 232,343 282,523 98,331 69,832 168,163 168 514,866 3.06
2009 * 263,810 - - 263,810 147,946 87,413 235,359 1.12 263,810 1.12
2010 2 1,200,469 1,189,028 241,817 253,258 102,381 65,621 168,002 1.51% 495,075 295
2010 ? 256,174 - - 266,174 151,896 83,772 235 668 1.13 266,174 1.13
2011 2 1,297,129 1,248,547 247,878 298,460 106,603 63,412 170,015 1.76 546,338 321

2011 3 261,909 - - 261,909 155,729 79,939 235,668 1.11 261,809 1.11

2012 2 1,480,051 1,316,013 253,851 413,989 503,868 40,574 544,442 0.76 657,840 1.23
2012 3 264,576 - - 264,576 158,659 76,009 235,668 i.12 264 576 1.12
2013 ? 1,386,147 1,305,751 257,677 348,073 71,275 33,748 105,023 3.31 605,750 577
2013 °® 263,339 - - 253,339 163,689 71,981 235,670 1.12 263,339 1.12
2014 2 1,399,529 1,353,254 288,192 334 467 112,038 55,435 167,473 2.00 622,659 3.72
2014 3 266,357 - - 266,357 167,819 67,850 235,669 113 266,357 1.13
2015 2 1,449,231 1,439,345 320,596 330,482 130,052 56,423 186,475 1.77 651,078 3.49
2015 * g 272,428 § - - 5 272,428 3 172,054 3 63615 § 235,669 116 § 272,428 1.16

' GAAP Basis L
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CITY OF VERMILLION
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
Net Revenue

Table 16

Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Paymenis Totai :2\;?1:)&;: Coverage

Fiscal Net Operating included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without

Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Caverage Depreciation Depreciation
2006 $ 1,125,287 1,012,040 3 307,791 & 421,138 % 70,040 $ 38,925 % 108,965 385 % 728,929 6.69
2007 1,260,442 1,191,304 380,627 449,765 139,674 114,424 254,088 177 830,392 327
2008 1,332,533 1,168,515 380,848 544,866 144,728 110,244 254 972 2.14 925714 383
2009 1,418,108 1,230,161 387,288 575,235 149,498 105,646 255,144 225 962,523 3.77
2010 2 1,344 143 1,236,230 413,192 521,105 154,426 140,768 295,194 1.77 934,297 317
2010 3 145,131 - - 145,131 41,335 49,870 81,205 1.59 145,131 1.59
2011 2 1,346,120 1,435,127 509,019 420,012 168,769 104,201 272,970 1.54 929,031 340
2011 3 300,259 - - 300,259 138,513 124,963 263,476 1.14 306,259 1.14
2012 z 1,383,668 1,464,328 592,300 511,638 178,377 97.582 273,959 1.87 1,103,938 4.03
2012 : 321,140 - - 321,140 160,945 128,744 289,639 n 321,140 1.1t
2013 2 1,427,149 1,554,596 587,771 470,324 107,677 57,988 185,665 2.84 1,068,095 6.45
2013 3 322,608 - - 322 608 167,184 123,829 291,013 1.11 322,606 1.11
2014 2 1,491,940 1,554,258 604,768 542 450 168,431 54,718 253,149 2.14 1,147,218 4.53
2014 : 325,433 - - 325,433 172,684 118,329 291,013 1.12 325,433 1.12
2915 2 1,514,528 1,605,291 608,699 517,936 199,209 52,622 251,831 2.08 1,126,635 4.47
2015 3 330,834 - 8 - 3 330,834 § 178365 $ 112848 § 291,013 114 % 330.834 1.14

' GAAP Basis ‘

? Bond obligations not covered with surcharge pledge
2 Starting in 2010 a surcharge fee was pledged for the debt service
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CITY OF VERMILLION

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
CURBSIDE RECYCLING ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

Net Revenue

Table 17

Availabla

Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Caverage
Fiscal Net Cperating Inciuded in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal interest Payments Coverage Depraciation Depreciation
2010 % 111,838 % 92905 § 7337 % 26270 3% 7110 % 1,421 8,531 308 § 33.607 3.94
2011 118,759 88,143 7,338 35,954 7.288 1,119 8,407 4.28 43,292 515
2012 110,248 98,546 7,338 19,041 7472 936 8,408 2.26 26,379 3.14
2013 109,789 95,081 7,337 22,045 7,660 748 8,408 2.62 29,382 3.49
2014 100,223 899,781 49186 5,358 7,852 556 8,408 0.64 10,274 1.22
2015 3 108,267 $ 97.575 & 2485 3 13,187 & 8,050 §$ 358 8,408 1.57 % 15,682 1.87

' GAAP Basis

First Payment 2010
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CITY OF VERMILLION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 and DECEMBER 31, 2006

Table 18

2015 2008
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Type of # of City #of City

Employer Business Employeses Rank Employees Employees Rank Employees
University of South Dakota Higher Education 1.304 1 24.42% 1,450 1 24.62%
8anford Vermillion Medical Center Medicat 240 2 4.49% 275 3 4.687%
Wal-Mart Retail 225 3 4.21% 260 4 4.42%
Polaris Industries Parts Distribution 200 4 3.75% 155 7 2.63%
Vermillion Public Schocls Education 174 5 3.26% 160 6 2.72%
Hy Vee Food Stores Retail 170 6 3.18% 170 5 2.89%
SESDAC Education/Training 145 7 2.72% 140 8 2.38%
Masaba Mining Equipment Manufacturing 108 8 1.99% - - -
City of Vermillion Government 105 9 1.87% 100 g 1.70%
eTelecare Global Sclutions, Inc Call Center . - . 400 2 6.79%
Totals 2,669 49.98% 3,110

Information in table provided from South Dakota Econemic Develo

Corporation and the South Dakota Department of Labor.
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TABLE 19
CITY OF VERMILLION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
Educational University
Total Per Capita Altainment Public of
Calendar Personal Fersonal Bachelor's Median Schoal South Dakota Unemployment

Year Population’ Income Income? Degree or Higher' Age' Enrollmant’ Enrollment* Rata'

2006 9862 § 301,481,340 30,570 n/a nfa 1,318 8,746 2.80%
2007 9,875 333,145,050 33,398 nfa n/a 1,282 8,243 2.50%
2008 10,485 408,087,580 38,884 n/a nla 1,288 9,281 2.50%
2008 10,417 422,117,674 40,522 2,358 n/a 1,275 9,617 3.60%
2010 10,578 423 827,744 40,048 2,358 23.4 1,251 10,151 4.00%
2011 10,571 455,673,526 43,106 2,128 n/a 1,239 5,870 3.40%
2012 10,811 486,451,758 44 996 2,128 nia 1,256 10,284 4.00%
2013 10,811 528,668,711 48,901 2,186 23.4 1,210 10,235 3.10%
2014 10,811 n/a n/a nfa n/a 1,244 10,061 3.60%
2015 10,738 § nfa $  ra n/a nia 1,208 9,671 3.10%

" State of South Dakota websits,

? United States Census Bureau per Business Research Bursau, USD,
?Vermillion Fublic School Business Cffice.

*USD website. Fall Semester enroliment figures.

n/a - This data was unavaitable at the time of the report.
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Function

General
Executive
Finance
Engineering
Service Center

Pubilc Safety
Police Administration
Pollce Patrof
Communications
Fire

Public Works
Street Department
Carpentry

Health & Welfare
Code Compllance
Ambulance

Culture-Recreation
Pool
Recreation
Libraries
Parks

Electric

Water

Wastewater

Gaolf

Jolnt Powers

Curbside Recycling

Internal Service
Custodlal

fnfarmation in table provided from City of Vermillion payroil data base,

CITY OF VERMILLION
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 20

20086 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2.82 3.7 3.07 3.63 3.88 3.31 3.01 3.00 2.895 320
5.00 6,02 8.00 6.02 5.94 6.00 6.00 8,00 6.00 8.00
4.83 4.64 4,87 4,22 4.7 4.73 4.38 4.30 4.22 3.88
255 2.57 2.48 2,54 2.58 2.53 2,24 2.25 2.50 2.18
5,53 &8.71 510 6,10 5,687 5.26 4.98 4,88 4.91 4,69

13,92 13.77 15.04 15.57 16.44 15.77 17.40 15,70 17,22 16.358
7.22 8.83 7.44 7.43 8.01 4.33 8.38 7.81 8.24 7.94
1.00 1.00 1.01 1.00 1.00 1.02 0.46 1.00 1.00 1.34
5.51 5.72 5.94 6.71 6.59 6.48 5.80 6,33 6.70 7.3z
1.04 1.07 1.08 1.04 1.05 1.04 1.08 1.04 0.57 024
3.04 3.01 3.02 3.01 2.9 3.25 273 3.04 3.00 6,00
4.04 413 4,57 3.02 3.06 3.44 3.14 315 5.06 5.7z
4.81 4.61 4.43 5.06 4,85 4.83 4.07 4.01 4.69 4.08
3.79 4.27 4,22 4.53 4.01 4.26 3.83 3,82 3.83 3.68
8.10 8.08 8.24 8.56 8.84 8.58 8.01 7.87 7.85 777
478 4.00 4.56 4,43 4.49 4.30 4,17 4.29 3,98 375

.27 10.87 10.67 T1.15 10.85 10.91 10.61 10.73 10.41 10.49
8.36 8.64 8.48 8.56 8.70 B.35 8.58 B.45 8.47 8.18
7.01 787 7.41 7.15 6.98 8.95 6.78 6.81 7.08 6.04
9.42 913 871 9,65 9.85 9.32 9.33 8,35 9.18 9.50
8.20 9.10 9.¥0 9.96 9.85 9.76 10,00 981 10.17 10.20

- - - 0.72 1.86 1.95 2,00 1.91 2.00 2.00
1.73 1.81 1.82 2.01 2,18 214 214 2.32 2.39 234
125.96 128.38 128,84 131.05 134.36 132,48 129,19 127.76 132.49 132.88
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Function
Police
Non Traffic Violations
Traffic Viclations
Parking Violations
Fire
Structure Fires
Cther Fires & incidents Calls
Ambulance
Total Calls
Total Stand-By
Code Compliance
Rental Housing Inspections
Building Permits-Single Family
Building Penmits-Multiple Family
Building Permits-Commercial
Value of New Construction  §

Municipal Garage
Service Jobs
Repairs
Library
Circulation
Number of Card Holders
Swimming Pool
Swim Lessen Participation
Qpen Swim Participants
Parks & Recreafion
Falliinter Participants
Summer Participants
Eleciric
Tota! Number Maters
Total Metered Kitowatts
Summer Peak Demand Kilowatts
Winter Peak Demand Kilowatts
Water
Number of Connacticns
Average Daily Consumption
Daity Peak Demand
Wastewater
Number of Connections
Average Daily Flow
Daily Peak Demand
Joint Powers
Tonnage in Landfil Trenches
Tonnage Recycled
Curbside Recycling
Tennage Collected
Bluff's Golf Course
Rounds of Golf
Liquor Store
Gross Sales
Gross Profit %
Strest Department
Tons of Sand for kce
Truckloads of Snow Hauled

CITY OF VERMILLION

OPERATING INDICATORS 8Y FUNGTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 21

20086 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

735 aa0s 821 821 747 561 493 a3 573 530

603 762 936 S06 1,219 660 709 889 839 812

2,341 2,297 2,576 1,833 1,865 1.399 1275 1,328 1,412 1,825

14 13 12 12 12 14 2 15 13 7

78 Ki:l 118 104 102 92 123 145 177 181

518 574 702 77t 740 727 785 712 8GA 87o

37 28 38 44 45 52 68 85 68 50

600 912 1,184 970 1,105 1,088 959 1.215 80 1.128

36 37 30 i 10 a 15 9 4 16

T 7 9 1 7 4 2 2z 18 10

B 8 12 13 8 3 3 4 5 :]
8,212,480 18,544,721 9639155 § 2983206 $ 4502352 § 5786357 § 3771388 § 8138807 § 13611097 § 29966297
260 238 273 243 248 241 234 204 218 193

374 369 288 353 376 368 234 291 267 336
78,652 78,186 78,711 71878 78,168 78,344 75238 73,460 83,800 107797
1.772 B,137 7319 7634 7,158 4,763 5357 6,056 6,353 4,653

351 389 392 402 427 406 325 325 340 314
18,700 18,700 18,125 13,080 12,320 12,320 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,600
4,588 4,204 4,041 3857 3.009 2,799 2,144 1.483 1.494 1,363
2,352 1.936 1,888 2,048 2,130 2,034 1,950 1,985 2,420 2,388
4277 4,357 4,374 4,414 4,431 4,447 4474 4,481 4,526 4817
1,249,006 64,250,866 63,777.094 62,288,446 65,537,825 87,118.551 7,571,917 66,800,569 65,034,860 4,939,075
16,132 15,424 14,746 14,620 15619 16,720 17,051 16,562 15,393 14915
10,850 11,294 11,496 11,088 11,148 11,240 10,826 11,218 11078 11,089
2,708 2748 2,847 2,826 2,856 2875 2,944 2,867 3022 3.079
1,102 896 1,199,674 1,070,737 1,017,595 §21,829 958,603 1,130,197 1,005,083 1,000,844 1,036,238
2,231,000 2,549,000 2,367,000 1,647,000 1.365,000 1,864,000 2,249,000 2,071,000 1,804,000 1,694,000
2612 2,683 2,759 2,761 2,763 2,809 2,862 2917 2,955 3000
1,102,000 1,108,000 1,025,000 1,033,000 1,248,000 1,374,000 831,000 832,000 12,000 969,000
2,133,000 4,858,000 1,787,000 1,730,000 3,517,000 2,835,000 1,134,000 1,082,000 1,256,000 1,087 000
28812 32,090 36,382 35,420 35,488 34,813 34,187 34,494 34,854 37,007
972 1,163 1211 1,805 1,085 1,086 1.077 1,035 828 830

- - - - - 136 144 160 1758 178

21,188 23376 21,443 23,012 21,476 20,703 22,789 18,808 23222 23,500
967,937 1,084,738 1,178,546 1.1656,625 1,181,977 1,185,643 1.217,013 1,183,334 1,245,418 1,498,390
33.5%% 33.37% 31.25% 30.93% 3117% 30.897% 31.06% 30.86% 30.35% 29.92%
524 1.001 959 830 767 450 350 368 296 480

193 585 538 713 1,874 316 226 189 112 587

Infarmaton in table provided from City of Vermillion Department Superintendents
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Table 22
CITY OF VERMILLION
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Function
Police

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 q

Police Vehicles 5 5 5 & 5 ] 5 5 5 5
Fire

Stations 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Engines/Trucks 8 6 6 6 6 8 [ 6 10 10

Hydrants 385 387 388 392 398 398 397 401 417 417
Ambulance

Ambulances 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Public Woerks

Streets {miles) 46.69 46.77 46.594 46.94 46.94 47.39 47.39 4739 53.70 5370

Streetiights 1,172 1,187 1,211 1,285 1,243 1,243 1,25% 1,28% 1,289 1,289
Cutture & Recreation

Parks (acres) 115.50 115.50 115.50 115.50 115.50 115.50 115.50 115.50 130.00 130.00

Parks 7 7 7 7 7 7 T 7 ré 7

Swimming Pools 1 1 1 i 1 i 1 1 1 1

Tennis Courts 1 i 1 1 1 1 + 1 1 i

Softball Diamonds 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Baseball Diamonds 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Goif Courses 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9
Electric

Total Transformers on 13.8 kV Line 694 677 678 664 561 675 665 669 686 705

Total miles of 3 phase on 13.8 kV Line 49.49 49.71 2317 47.60 48.53 49.83 49 61 49.82 50.82 51.33

Total Miles of 115kV Transmission Line - - - - - - 21.25 21.97 21.97 21.97
Water

Water Mains (miles) 61.07 81.21 8217 63.41 64.01 64.69 64 86 64,94 G66.25 66.26

Maximum Daily Capacity (gailons) 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,060,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Wastewater

Sanitary Sewer (miles) 57.85 57.85 57.93 58.15 58.18 58.27 58.36 58.36 59.42 59.42

Stormwater Sewer (miles) 8,26 6.26 B8.57 6.81 6.82 5.84 6.84 6.89 8.01 8.01

Maximum: Daily Capacity (gallons) 4,000,060 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Information in table provided from City of Vermilion Department Superintendents
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CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
Schedule of Findings
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Summary of the Independent Auditor's Resulis

A. Unmodified opinions were issued on the financiai statements.

B. A material weakness in internal contro! over financial reporting was disclosed by the audit of
the financial statements.

C. The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing

Standards

Instances of Non-Compliance:

No matters were noted.

Material Weakness:

2015-001

Financial Reporting

Condition and Criteria ~ The auditors were required to propose and have
management post adjusting journal entries to the fund financial statements in order
for the financial statements to conform with U.S, generally accepted accounting
principies. Management is responsible for the preparation cof financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Effect — The financial statements provided by management are not presentad entirely
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Cause — With a limited number of personnel and current staff workload, the time
constraints do not provide management absolute assurance all year end U.S. GAAP
adjusting journal entries will be posted.

Recommendation - The City should implement procedures to ensure all reguired
adjustments are properly made to the City's financial statemeants.

Views of Responsible Officials — The City will double check the financial statements
in the future and all supporting schedules to verify that all adjustments are made

properly.
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21 1% Avenue NW
\;V ILLIAMS@% P.0. Box 1010
Le Mars, IA 51031

l_—((} COM PANYPC Phone (712) 546-7801

Fax (712) 546-5543
Certified Public Accountants www.williamscpas.com

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Vermillion, South Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented compoenent unit, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report therecon dated ---
July 22, 2016. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment Commission, as described in our report on the City's financiai
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

In planning and performing cur audit cf the financial statements, we considered the City of Vermillion’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Vermillion's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Vermillion's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of perfarming their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in
the accompanying schedule of findings as 2015-001 that we consider to be a material waakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters:

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Vermiltion's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Vermillion’s Response to Findings

The City of Vermillion’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings. The City of Vermillion's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dzkota Codified Law 4-
11-11, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the
City during the course of our audit.

If you have any questions concerning the above matters, we would be pleased to discuss them with

you at your convenience.
M/I/W 4 ) r% !(o-f-

Certified Public Accountants

lL.e Mars, lowa
July 22, 2016
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